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2015
147,390,029.15 100. 44
147,390,029.15 100.44
649,105.07 0.44
146,740,924.08
( 17,634 ) 100.00
2015
)
26,749,551.47 | 221,610,617.74 8.28 | 147,390,029.15 5.51 | 100.44

2015

2015
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2014 2015

2008 11 136,884,709 | 16,449,435 76.60 9,205 89.60 11,677 6,360
2009 11 299,574,041 | 35,999,813 101.24 12,166 99.99 13,031 6,889
2010 11 345,809,425 | 41,555,919 113.53 13,643 129.16 16,832 6,919
2011 11 314,079,981 | 37,742,991 113.96 13,695 125.27 16,325 5,872
2012 11 323,166,889 | 38,834,965 131.48 15,800 149.55 19,489 6,535
2013 11 292,865,819 | 35,193,685 121.03 14,544 131.44 17,129 6,873
2014 11 193,652,666 | 23,271,241 117.60 14,132 139.43 18,171 7,083
2014 240,007,279 | 28,841,675 122.02 14,663 130.11 16,956 6,710
243,754,760 | 29,292,010 125.20 15,045 135.65 17,678 6,756

244,824,331 | 29,420,540 126.21 15,167 136.28 17,760 6,781

237,191,374 | 28,503,287 125.28 15,055 138.42 18,039 6,732

229,403,002 | 27,567,359 125.19 15,044 140.51 18,311 6,796

211,291,023 | 25,390,842 118.33 14,220 138.48 18,047 6,684

10 208,075,218 | 25,004,399 118.98 14,298 140.38 18,294 6,868

11 193,652,666 | 23,271,241 117.60 14,132 139.43 18,171 7,083

12 168,909,127 | 20,297,810 110.66 13,298 134.47 17,524 6,703

2015 163,914,282 | 19,697,579 109.99 13,217 14407 18,775 6,456
156,564,567 | 18,814,364 108.24 13,007 142.63 18,588 6,465

146,740,924 | 17,633,857 104.59 12,569 143.92 18,756 6,164

2014 11 2014
11 2014 11 28 2014 11 30
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2008 31 2008 11 30 650
2008 12 2009 11 30 660
2009 12 2010 11 30 600
2010 12 2011 11 30 600
2011 12 2012 11 30 600
2012 12 2013 11 30 600
2013 12 2014 11 30 600
2014 100

100

100

100

11 100

2015 100

100
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2008 31 2008 11 30 23.40
2008 12 2009 11 30 32.17
2009 12 2010 11 30 12.14
2010 12 2011 11 30 0.38
2011 12 2012 11 30 15.37
2012 12 2013 11 30 7.95
2013 12 2014 11 30 2.83
x 100

100

100
2008 31 2008 11 30 10.40
2008 12 2009 11 30 11.60
2009 12 2010 11 30 29.17
2010 12 2011 11 30 3.01
2011 12 2012 11 30 19.38
2012 12 2013 11 30 12.11
2013 12 2014 11 30 6.08
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2008 31 2008 11 30 29.90
2008 12 2009 11 30 18.69
2009 12 2010 11 30 9.15
2010 12 2011 11 30 6.46
2011 12 2012 11 30 21.51
2012 12 2013 11 30 14.35
2013 12 2014 11 30 11.79

1,046,333 81,857 964,476

(1,046,333) (81,857) (964,476)

305, 854 307,291 963,039

(305,854) (307,291) (963,039)

572,890 734,554 801,375

(572,890) (734,554) (801,375)

85,215 296,509 590,081

(85,215) (296,509) (590,081)

12,624 65,752 536,953

(12,624) (65,752) (536,953)

333,895 231,052 639,796

(333,895) (231,052) (639,796)

63,019 301,540 401,275

(63,019) (301,540) (401,275)
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228,202 59,905 168,297
(228,202) (59,905) (168,297)
57,168 58,301 167,164
(57.168) (58,301) (167,164)
215,151 174,796 207,519
(215,151) (174,796) (207,519)
25,559 75,705 157,373
(25,559) (75,705) (157,373)
1,376 19,352 139,397
(1,376) (19,352) (139,397)
11,065 43,631 106,831
(11,065) (43,631) (106,831)
6,708 36,807 76,732
(6,708) (36,807) (76,732)
748,533 91,552 656,981
(748,533) (91,552) (656,981)
132,385 132,282 657,084
(132,385) (132,282) (657,084)
122,896 171,412 608,568
(122,896) (171,412) (608,568)
43,145 143,565 508,148
(43,145) (143,565) (508,148)
27,564 48,581 487,131
(27,564) (48,581) (487,131)
266,702 141,630 612,203
(266,702) (141,630) (612,203)
154,394 222,159 544,438
(154,394) (222,159) (544,438)
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2014 11 30
2014 11 30 2013 11 30
©) 193,929,534 23,304,512 293,358,433 35,252,883
105,563 12,686
846 102 889,441 106,884
606,874 72,928 459,727 55,245
194,642,817 23,390,227 294,707,601 35,415,012
14 527 63 234 28
846 102 889,914 106,941
606,559 72,890 458,961 55,153
5,000 601
132,079 15,872 198,124 23,809
3,208 386 3,208 386
137,633 16,539 206,154 24,774
15,743 1,892 12,024 1,445
21,462 2,579 29,228 3,512
822 99 822 99
5,718 687 3,224 387
7,467 897 13,726 1,649
25,212 3,030 5,054 607
32,875 3,951 16,109 1,936
990,151 118,986 1,841,782 221,327
,10 193,652,666 23,271,241 292,865,819 35,193,685
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2014 11 30
2014 11 30 2013 11 30

(b) 34,469,317 4,142,178 45,055,755 5,414,350

(33,659, 613) (4,044,876) (15,052,569) (1,808,867)

(2,860,347) (343,728) (54,599,217) (6,561,188)

(2,050,643) (246,426) (24,596,031) (2,955,705)

4,993 600 5,000 601

1,903,708 228,769 2,697,455 324,153

36,000 4,326 36,000 4,326

1,975,098 237,348 2,798,609 336,309

19,323 2,322 34,590 4,157

15,178 1,824 28,114 3,378

10,000 1,202 10,000 1,202

6,031 725 6,192 744

250,612 30,116 48,000 5,768

72,631 8,728 37,534 4,510

23,700 2,848 12,960 1,557

4,317,274 518,807 5,714,454 686,706

(105,563) (12,686)

4,211,711 506,121 5,714,454 686,706

(6,262,354) (752,547) (30,310, 485) (3,642,411)

11 17,588,437 2,113,602 21,987,696 2,642,261

17,588,437 2,113,602 21,987,696 2,642,261

(23,850,791) (2,866,150) (52,298,181) (6,284,672)
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2015 24
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2014 11 30

2014 11 30 2013 11 30
292,865,819 35,193,685 323,166,889 38,834,965
44,059,079 5,294,580 181,518,211 21,813,043
(119,421,441) (14,350,875) (159,521, 100) (19,169,651)
(23,850,791) (2,866,150) (52,298,181) (6,284,672)
193,652,666 23,271,241 292,865,819 35,193,685
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2014 11 30
2014 29 2001 11
2011
2014 11 30
2008 31
2008 31
2008 31
2009 27
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@
26

O

100/228



(c

«

2014 11 30

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =S 25
Ooooooooooooooooooad

26

2013 11 30

101/228



(e

(f

(9

(a

O

25

2014 11 30

29

2013 11 30

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =S 25
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1997 739

102/228



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =S 25
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2014 11 30
193,929,534 193,929,534
193,929,534 193,929,534
2013 11 30
293,358,433 293,358,433
293,358,433 293,358,433
2014 11 30 2013 11 30
2014 11 30 2013 11 30
5,000
0.80 1,903,708
2013 11 30 2,697,455
2.5
2014 11 30 105,563 2013 11 30
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36,000 2013 11 30
36,000
2013 11 30
0.83
1,975,098 2013 11 30 2,798,609
19,323 2013 11 30 34,590
0.01 10,000
10,000 2013 11 30 10,000
2014 11 30 2013 11 30
2014 11 30 2013 11 30
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33,659,613 15,052,569
33,659,613 15,052,569
2,860,347 54,599,217
2,860,347 54,599,217
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100 100 10,000

2013 12 2014 11 30
639,796 63,019 (301,540) 401,275
106,831 6,708 (36,807) 76,732
612,203 154,394 (222,159) 544,438
17,733,152 2,995,182 (7,442,933) 13,285,401
19,091,982 3,219,303 (8,003, 439) 14,307,846

2012 12 2013 11 30
536,953 333,895 (231,052) 639,796
139,397 11,065 (43,631) 106,831
487,131 266,702 (141,630) 612,203
17,830,469 11,046,407 (11,143,724) 17,733,152
18,993,950 11,658,069 (11,560,037) 19,091,982
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2014 11 30 2013 11 30
47,189,265 117.5982 77,434,277 121.0296
10,713,962 139.6292 14,042,047 131.4413
3,840,748,907 7,054.5161 4,207,502,358 6,872.7247
100,633,861 7.5748 155,209,652 8.7525
2012 11 30
70,600,472 131.4835
20,846,609 149.5488
3,183,181,205 6,534.5459
186,855,272 10.4796
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2014 11 30
2014 15 2014 21 100.00 58,410,413
2014 17 2014 20 100.00 59,898,109
2014 15 2014 20 100.00 60,401,386
2014 15 2014 18 100.00 58,801,416
2014 16 2014 19 100.00 57,734,660
2014 11 17 2014 11 20 100.00 54,635,461
2013 12 16 2013 12 19 0.08 1,370,146
2014 15 2014 21 0.08 1,282,257
2014 18 2014 21 0.08 1,214,974
2014 17 2014 20 0.08 1,190,543
2014 15 2014 22 0.08 1,151,782
2014 15 2014 20 0.08 1,173,074
2014 16 2014 19 0.08 1,178,369
2014 15 2014 18 0.08 1,201,521
2014 18 2014 21 0.08 1,152,028
2014 16 2014 19 0.08 1,132,408
2014 10 15 2014 10 20 0.08 1,115,460
2014 11 17 2014 11 20 0.08 1,096,827
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2013 11 30

2013 15 2013 18 100.00 48,710,969
2013 15 2013 21 100.00 52,959,435
2013 15 2013 21 100.00 55,352,233
2013 16 2013 19 100.00 60,732,690
2013 17 2013 20 100.00 59,934,347
2013 11 15 2013 11 20 100.00 60,612,160
2012 12 17 2012 12 20 0.08 1,421,826
2013 15 2013 18 0.08 1,392,707
2013 15 2013 21 0.08 1,488,405
2013 15 2013 21 0.08 1,593,691
2013 15 2013 18 0.08 1,627,597
2013 15 2013 21 0.08 1,696,049
2013 17 2013 20 0.08 1,679,529
2013 16 2013 19 0.08 1,623,772
2013 16 2013 21 0.08 1,571,917
2013 17 2013 20 0.08 1,507,760
2013 10 15 2013 10 18 0.08 1,471,996
2013 11 15 2013 11 20 0.08 1,439,633
@
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2014 11 30
15
.0 ) 2.0
a.7 ) 1.7
1.6 ) 1.6
1.5 .5 )
1.4 ) 1.4
1.4 ) 1.4
6.7 ) 6.7
(13.3 ) 13.3
2013 11 30
15
2.1 ) 2.1
.0 ) 2.0
.7 ) 1.7
(1.6 ) 1.6
.2 ) 1.2
(1.2 ) 1.2
(5.6 ) 5.6
(15.4 ) 15.4
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75bp 100bp 75bp 100bp
0.75 1.0
2014 11 30

1
0.7 0.7 )
0.6 ) 0.6
0.6 ) 0.6
0.5 ) 0.5
0.5 ) 0.5
0.5 ) 0.5
1.9 ) 1.9
(3.9 ) 3.9
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2013 11 30
1
@.1) 1.1
1.0 ) 1.0
0.9 0.9 )
0.6 ) 0.6
(0.5 ) 0.5
0.4 0.4 )
(1.5 ) 1.5
(3.4 ) 3.4
75bp
100bp
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(b)
10
2014 11 30
7.88 2013 11 30 11.22 10
2014 11 30 2013 11 30
1 50.00 ! 51.00
1 48.00 ! 47.00
2.00 2.00
100.00 100.00
2014 11 30 2013 11 30
2014 11 30 2013 11 30
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©)

2014 11 30 2013 11 30

2014 11 30 2013 11 30
193,929,534 293,358,433
105,563
846 889,441
606,874 459,727
194,642,817 294,707,601
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2014 11 30

100.14

2013 11 30

100.17

13

14

©)

2014 11 30
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2014 11 30 2013 11 30

527 0.00 234 0.00

527 0.00 234 0.00

15
1996

16

30

17

2014 11 30 2013 11 30

0.803310 0.734889

118.205000 102.275000

18
2014 11 30 2013 11 30

19

2014 11 30 2013 11 30

20
2014 29

21
2015

22

23
2015 24
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2014 11 30
29,927,397

_ @O 193,929,534 100.14
193,929,534 100.14
193,929,534 100.14

2014 11 30 2013 11 30
193,929,534 100.14 293,358,433 100.17
(276,868) (0.14) (492,614) 0.17)
193,652,666 100.00 292,865,819 100.00
99.63
0.37
100.00

(a
[
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 November 2014

30 November 2014

30 November 2013

Notes Us$ Us$
Assets
T;ggncial assets at fair value through profitor 3(c), 6 103,929,534 203,358,433
Reimbursement from Investment Advisor 7 105,563 -
Receivable for fund units sold 846 889,441
Receivable for investments sold 606,874 459,727
Total Assets 194,642,817 294,707,601
Liabilities
Bank Overdraft 14 527 234
Payable for investments purchased 846 889,914
Payable for units redeemed 606,559 458,961
Management Company fees payable 7 - 5,000
Investment Advisor fees payable 7 132,079 198,124
Administration and Trustee fees payable 7 3,208 3,208
Distribution and Agent Member fees payable 7 137,633 206,154
Transfer Agent fees payable 7 15,743 12,024
Audit fees payable 21,462 29,228
Unitholder Services Agent fees payable 7 822 822
Directors” fees payable 7 5,718 3,224
Legal fees payable 7,467 13,726
Printing fees payable 25,212 5,054
Other liabilities 32,875 16,109
Total Liabilities (Excluding Net Assets
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable 990,151 1,841,782
Participating Units)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable 9, 10 103,652,666 202,865,819

Participating Units

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Manager:

Director Director

24 March 2015

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds

Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 November 2014

Income

Dividend income

Net realised investment loss

Net change in unrealised investment loss
Net Investment Loss

Expenses

Management Company fees
Investment Advisor fees
Administration and Trustee fees
Distribution and Agent Member fees
Transfer Agent fees

Audit fee

Unitholder Services Agent fees
Directors” fees

Legal fees

Printing fees

Other expenses

Total Expenses

Reimbursement of expenses by the Investment
Advisor

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Loss

Finance Costs:

Distributions to holders of redeemable
participating units

Total Finance Costs

Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units from Operations

30 November 2014

30 November 2013

Notes US$ Us$
3(b) 34,469,317 45,055,755
8 (33,659,613) (15,052,569)
8 (2,860,347) (54,599,217)
(2,050,643) (24,596,031)

7 4,993 5,000
7 1,903,708 2,697,455
7 36,000 36,000
7 1,975,098 2,798,609
7 19,323 34,590
15,178 28,114

7 10,000 10,000
7 6,031 6,192
250,612 48,000

72,631 37,534

23,700 12,960

4,317,274 5,714,454

7 (105,563) -
4,211,711 5,714,454

(6,262,354) (30,310,485)

11 17,588,437 21,987,696
17,588,437 21,987,696

(23,850,791)

(52,298,181)

Gains and Losses arose solely from continuing investing activities. There were no gains and losses other

than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Manager:

Director

24 March 2015

Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units
For the Year Ended 30 November 2014

30 November 2014 30 November 2013

Notes Us$ Us$
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units at Start of Year 292,865,819 323,166,889
?roceedS'from redeemable participating units 9 44,059,079 181,518,211
issued
Payments for redeemable participating units 9 (119,421,441) (159,521,100)
redeemed
Change in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating (23,850,791) (52,298,181)
Units from Operations
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of 193,652,666 202,865,819

Redeemable Participating Units at Year End

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2014

Organisation

Goldman Sachs Global Funds (“the Trust”) is aunit trust established as an umbrella fund. Effective
29 May 2014, the Central Bank of Ireland granted an application to revoke the authorisation of the
Trust as a non-UCITS Unit Trust authorised on 7 November 2001. Effective the same date, the Central
Bank of Ireland authorised the Trust under the European Communities Undertakings for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities (“UCITS”) Regulations 2011 (as amended) (“the UCITS
Regulations”).

As at 30 November 2014, the Trust consisted of one sub-fund, Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt
Local Feeder (“the Fund”), and the following Unit Classes:

Fund Class Currency Launch Date
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Ordinary Unit

Local Feeder Class UsD 31-Jan-2008
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt .

Local Feeder Euro Unit Class EUR 31-Jan-2008
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt ven Unit Class IPY 31-Jan-2008

Local Feeder

Ordinary Unit
Class usD 27-Jul-2009
Distribution

Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt
Local Feeder

The Fund invests in Goldman Sachs Growth & Emerging Markets Debt Local Portfolio (the “Master
Portfolio™), a sub-fund of Goldman Sachs funds, an investment company organised under the laws of
the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg as a “Societe d*" Investissement a Capital Variable”.

Investment Objectives

The investment objective of the Fund is a high level of total return consisting of income and
capital appreciation. To achieve this objective, all, or substantially all, of the proceeds of
each class of Units in the Fund will be invested in the Class “1X0” share class of the Master
Portfolio.

Inaddition, a small portion of the Fund may be retained in cash or invested in liquid investments

for liquidity purposes and for the purposes of paying any expenses due by the Fund, but such
investments will not exceed 10% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2014

@

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars, the Trust"s functional currency.
Financial assets and liabilities are held at “fair value through profit or loss”, as defined by FRS
26 “Financial Instruments: Measurement”. Other financial assets and liabilities are stated at
cost or redemption amount in the case of redeemable participating units. The financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland and in
accordance with the UCITS Regulations.

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Board of Directors of the Manager to make
certain estimates and assumptions that may affect the amounts reported in the audited financial
statements and accompanying notes. Refer to the liabilities section of the Statement of Financial
Position and Note 4 for instances where the Board of Directors of the Manager was required to make
certain estimates and assumptions to determine fair value. Actual results may differ from those
estimates. Accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland in preparing financial statements
giving a true and fair value are those published by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Ireland and issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities held at fair value through profitor
loss.

The format and certain wording of the financial statements has been adapted from those contained
in FRS 3 “Reporting Financial Performance” so that, in the opinion of Goldman Sachs Management
(Ireland) Limited (“the Manager”), they more appropriately reflect the nature of the Trust"s
business as an investment Trust.
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(b)

©

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment Transactions and Related Investment Income

The Trust records its investment transactions on a trade date basis. Realised gains and losses are
based on the Weighted Average cost method. Dividend income and dividend expense are recorded on
the ex-dividend date and interest income and interest expense are accrued over the life of the
investment. Interest income includes accretion of market discount, original issue discounts and
amortisation of premiums and is recorded into income over the life of the underlying investment.
Interest income and dividend income are recognised on a gross basis before withholding tax, if
any.

Operating expenses are recognised on an accrual basis.

Transaction costs, when incurred, are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Financial Investment in Securities and Valuation

i. Classification

A financial asset or financial liability at fair value through profitor loss is a financial asset
or liability that is classified as held-for-trading or designated at fair value through profit or
loss. The following financial investments are classified as held-for-trading: collective
investment schemes.

Financial assets that are not at fair value through profit or loss include accounts receivable.

Financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss include accounts payable
and financial liabilities arising on redeemable units.
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©

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Investment in Securities and Valuation (continued)

ii. Recognition and Derecognition

The Trust recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the investment. Purchases and sales of financial assets and
financial liabilities are recognised using trade date accounting. From trade date, any gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities are
recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or the Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

iii. Fair Value Measurement Principles

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profitor loss are valued in
accordance with FRS 26. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recorded at
their transaction price and then measured at fair value subsequent to initial recognition. Gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the "financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss" category are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period inwhich they arise. Financial assets classified as
receivables are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any. Financial liabilities, other than
those at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at cost.

Financial liabilities arising from redeemable participating units issued by the Trust are carried
at the redemption amount representing the investors” right to a residual amount of the Trust"s Net

Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units (“Net Assets”).

The fair value of all securities is determined according to the following policies:
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©

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Investment in Securities and Valuation (continued)

iii. Fair Value Measurement Principles (continued)

(iii 1) Shares in Collective Investment Schemes

The fair value of investments in open-ended investment funds, comprising collective investment
schemes, is based upon the net asset values per share as supplied by the funds, in accordance with
the valuation policy of the applicable fund as outlined in its prospectus.

(i1i 2) All Securities

If a quoted market price is not available froma third party pricing service or adealer, ora
quotation is believed to be materially inaccurate, the fair value of the investment is determined
by using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include the use of recent market
transactions, reference to the current fair value of another investment that is substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analyses or any other techniques that provides a reliable estimate of
prices obtained in actual market transactions.

Such securities shall be valued at their probable realisation value as determined by a person
appointed by the Directors of the Manager and approved by the Trustee (the “Competent Person”).
Such a Competent Person may be the Investment Advisor itself, independent pricing agents or
others, subject to applicable law. The Competent Person during the year ended 30 November 2014 and
year ended 30 November 2013 was Goldman Sachs Valuation Oversight Group (“VOG”).

The investments have been valued in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles that
may require the use of certain estimates and assumptions to determine fair value. Although these
estimates and assumptions are based on the best available information, actual results could be

materially different from these estimates.

Refer to note 4 for the securities where the Competent Person was used to determine fair value.
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(D

©)

Q)

@

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash

Cash is valued at cost, which approximates fair value.

Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign currency exchange rate in effect
at the date of the transaction. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into US Dol lars at the foreign currency closing exchange rate in effect at the year end
date. Foreign currency exchange differences arising on translation and realised gains and losses
on disposals or settlements of assets and liabilities are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Foreign currency exchange gains or losses relating to investments at fair
value through profit or loss, derivative financial investments, and all other foreign currency
exchange gains or losses relating to monetary items, including cash and cash equivalents, are
reflected in the net realised investment gain/(loss) or net change in unrealised investment gain/
(loss) in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Finance Costs

Distributions payable on the redeemable participating units are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as Finance Costs.

Redeemable Participating Units

All redeemable participating units issued by the Trust provide the investors with the right to
redeem for cash at the value proportionate to the investor®s share in the Trust"s Net Assets on the
redemption date.

In accordance with FRS 25 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation”, such units have
been classified as a financial liability at the value of the redemption amount in the Statement of
Financial Position. The Trust is contractually obliged to redeem units in accordance with the
Prospectus.
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Competent Person Valuation

As at 30 November 2014 and 30 November 2013, there were no assets where the Competent Person was
used to determine fair value.

Taxation

Under current Irish law and practice, the Trust qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined
in Section 739B of the Taxes Consolidation Act 1997, as amended. On that basis Irish tax is not
chargeable to the Trust on its income or capital gains.

The Trust will not be Iiable to Irish tax in respect of its income and gains, other than on the
occurrence of a chargeable event. A chargeable event includes any distribution to unitholders or
any encashment, redemption or transfer of units or appropriation or cancellation of units, or a
deemed disposal of units every 8 years beginning from the date of the acquisition of those units,
but does not occur in respect of:

(a) unitholders who are neither Irish Resident nor Irish Ordinary Resident for tax purposes at the
time of the chargeable event and who have provided the Trust with a relevant declaration to

that effect; and

(b) certain exempted Irish tax resident unitholders who have provided the Trust with the necessary
signed statutory declarations.

A chargeable event does not include:

(i) any transaction in relation to units held in a recognised clearing system as designated by
order of the Revenue Commissioners of Ireland:

(i1) anexchange by a unitholder, effected by way of an arm"s length bargain where no payment is
made to the unitholder of units in the Trust for other units in the Trust;

(iii) an exchange of units arising on a qualified amalgamation or reconstruction of a fund with
another fund, or;

(iv) atransfer by a unitholder of the entitlement to a unit where the transfer is between spouses
and former spouses, subject to certain conditions.
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Taxation (continued)

In the absence of an appropriate declaration, the Trust will be liable for Irish tax on the
occurrence of a chargeable event and the Trust reserves its right to withhold such taxes from
unitholders. Capital gains, dividends and interest received by the Trust may be subject to taxes,
including withholding taxes in the countries in which the issuers of investments are located,
which may be located in the in the Net Asset Value (“NAV") of the Trust. Such taxes may not be
recoverable by the Trust or its unitholders.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under the Amendment to FRS 29 "Financial Instruments:
Disclosures® are described below:

Level 1 —Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date
for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities;

Level 2 —Quoted prices in markets that are not active or financial instruments for which
significant inputs are observable (including but not limited to quoted prices for similar
securities, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, volatility and credit spreads), either
directly or indirectly. This may include the Competent Persons” assumptions in determining fair
value measurement;

Level 3—Prices or valuations that require significant unobservable inputs (including the
Competent Persons® assumptions in determining fair value measurement).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety shall be determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed
against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable
inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a
Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or
liability.
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Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

The following tables show financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at fair value,
analysed between the three levels described above:

Financial Assets measured at fair value
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder

30-Nov-2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss Uss$ Uss$ Us$ Us$
Collective Investment Schemes 193,929,534 - - | 193,929,534
Total 193,929,534 - - | 193,929,534

Financial Assets measured at fair value
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder

30-Nov-2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss Uss$ US$ US$ Us$
Collective Investment Schemes 293,358,433 - - | 293,358,433
Total 293,358,433 - - | 293,358,433

During the year ended 30 November 2014 and the year ended 30 November 2013 there were no
significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets
and financial liabilities which were recorded at fair value.

No reconciliation of movements in the fair value of financial investments categorised within

Level 3 between the beginning and the end of the reporting period is presented as the Trust held no
Level 3 investments during the year ended 30 November 2014 and the year ended 30 November 2013.
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Significant Agreements and Related Parties

Manager

Goldman Sachs Management (Ireland) Limited (“the Manager”), a related party to the Trust, acts as
Manager to the Trust and is responsible for the management and operation of the Trust. The Manager
is entitled to receive an annual management charge of US$5,000 per fund for these services.

Investment Advisor

The Manager, on behal f of the Trust, has appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Management International
(“the Investment Advisor”), a related party to the Trust, as the Investment Advisor of the Trust.
The Investment Advisor has appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Management Co. Ltd as Sub-Investment
Advisor to the Trust. The Investment Advisor is entitled to receive a fee of 0.80% per annum of the
Net Asset Value for their services. The amount earned by the Investment Advisor during the year
under review was US$1,903,708 (year ended 30 November 2013: US$2,697,455) . The Manager has agreed
to limit the total annual fees and expenses (including the impact of fees and expenses at the
Master Portfolio level) to 2.5% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund or to such lesser
amount as the Manager may agree. The Manager and the Investment Advisor have agreed that the
Investment Advisor will reimburse the excess expenses.

For the year ended 30 November 2014, expenses of US$105,563 were reimbursed by the Investment
Advisor to the Trust (year ended 30 November 2013: Nil).

There are no sales charges in respect of the purchase or sale of Class 1X0 shares in the Master
Portfolio.

Directors” of the Manager Remuneration

Mr. Frank Ennis and Mr. Eugene Regan are independent Directors and have no executive function with
the Investment Advisor or its related party companies. The Trust pays each independent Director an
annual fee for their services as a Director of the Manager. Mr. Mark Heaney, Mr. Alan Shuch, Mr.
Theodore Sotir and Ms. Katherine Uniacke are related parties to the Investment Advisor and receive
no compensation from the Trust.

131/228



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =S 25
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2014

Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)

Administrator

The Manager has delegated its responsibilities as Administrator of the Trust to State Street Fund
Services (Ireland) Limited in accordance with the Administration Agreement. The Administrator is
responsible for the administration of the Trust®s affairs including the calculation of the Net
Asset Value and the preparation of the accounts. The Administrator receives a fee for its services
payable monthly in arrears out of the assets of the Trust. The amount earned by the Administrator
and Trustee was US$36,000 for the year under review (year ended 30 November 2013: US$36,000).

Trustee

State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (“the Trustee™) acts as Trustee of the Trust
pursuant to the Trust Deed. In accordance with and subject to the Trust Deed, the Trustee provides
safe custody for all assets of the Trust which are held under the control of the Trustee in the
Trustee”s custodial network. The Trustee receives a fee for its services payable monthly in
arrears out of the assets of the Trust. The amount earned by the Trustee for the year under review
and the year ended 30 November 2013 is included in the amounts earned by the Administrator as
above.

Distributor and Agent Member Company

The Manager has appointed Goldman Sachs International (“GSI1”), a related party to the Trust, as
distributor of the units. GSI has appointed Goldman Sachs Japan Co. Ltd., a related party to the
Trust, as Distributor in Japan. The Manager has appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Management Co. ,
Ltd., arelated party to the Trust, to act as the agent member company in Japan.

The Fund wi 'l pay the Distributor and Agent Member Company in Japan a quarterly fee in arrears at an
annual rate of 0.83% of the daily Net Asset Value of the Fund in aggregate, for fulfilling both
roles. The amount earned by the Distributor and Agent Member Company was US$1,975,098 for the year
under review (year ended 30 November 2013: US$2,798,609).
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Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)

Transfer Agent

The Trust has appointed RBC Investor Services (Ireland) Limited (“the Transfer Agent”) as
registrar and transfer agent for the Trust pursuant to the Registrar and Transfer Agent Agreement
between the Trust and the Transfer Agent. The day-to-day services provided to the Trust by the
Transfer Agent include receiving and processing subscription and redemption orders, allotting
and issuing units and maintaining the unitholder register for the units. The Transfer Agent is
paid a fee quarterly in arrears out of the net assets of the Trust. The amount earned by the
Transfer Agent was US$19,323 for the year under review (year ended 30 November 2013: US$34,590).

Unitholder Services Agent

GSI, through its European Shareholder Services Group, also receives a fee from the Trust. This is
in respect of investor services provided to the unitholders in the Trust and is payable quarterly
in arrears out of the assets of the Trust. The fee will not exceed 0.01% of the Trust"s Net Asset
Value or US$10,000 per annum whichever is lower. The amount earned by GSI was US$10,000 for the
year under review (year ended 30 November 2013: US$10,000).

Competent Person

The Directors of the Manager have appointed Goldman Sachs VOG to act as the Competent Person during
the year ended 30 November 2014 and year ended 30 November 2013.
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8. Net Realised and Unrealised Investment Gain/(Loss)

The net realised and unreal ised investment gain/(loss) from trading in financial assets and

financial liabilities shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income can be analysed as fol lows:

30-Nov-2014 30-Nov-2013

uss Us$

Net realised loss on investments (33,659,613) (15,052,569)
Net realised investment loss (33,659,613) (15,052,569)
Net change in unrealised loss on investments (2,860,347) (54,599,217)
Net change in unrealised investment loss (2,860,347) (54,599,217)

9. Unit Capital

The minimum initial subscription required in the case of the Fund shall not be less than US$100,
EUR100 or JPY10,000 unless otherwise determined by the Manager.

The relevant movements on Unit capital are shown on the Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units. The Fund invests the proceeds from the

issue of units in appropriate investments while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet

redemptions when necessary.

The following tables summarise the activity in the Fund®s Units:

f%gﬁgﬁ;%ig Subscriptions Redemptions 3é¥%ggﬁgz?§
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Ordinary Unit Class 639,796 63,019 (301,540) 401,275
EUR Unit Class 106,831 6,708 (36,807) 76,732
JPY Unit Class 612,203 154,394 (222,159) 544,438
8:2,'[';?&’ tUi”O'nt Class 17,733,152 2,095,182 | (7,442,933) | 13,285,401
Total 19,091,982 3,219,303 (8,003,439) 14,307,846

134/228



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =S 25
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2014

9. Unit Capital (continued)
Balance at o . Balance at
1-Dec-2012 Subscriptions Redemptions 30-Nov-2013
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Ordinary Unit Class 536,953 333,895 (231,052) 639,796
EUR Unit Class 139,397 11,065 (43,631) 106,831
JPY Unit Class 487,131 266,702 (141,630) 612,203
Ordinary Unit Class 17,830,469 | 11,046,407 | (11,143,724) | 17,733,152
Distribution
Total 18,993,950 11,658,069 (11,560,037) 19,091,982

10.

Net Asset Value (NAVY)

The following tables summarise the Net Asset Value and the NAV per unit of each Unit Class:

i 30-Nov-2014 30-Nov-2013
Goldman Sachs Emerging - -
Markets Debt Local Feeder Net Asset Value NAV Per Unit Net Asset Value NAV Per Unit
Uss Uss Uss Uss
Ordinary Unit Class UsD 47,189,265 USD 117.5982 USD 77,434,277 USD 121.0296

Ordinary Unit Class

UsD 70,600,472

USD 131.4835

EUR Unit Class

EUR 20,846,609

EUR 149.5488

JPY Unit Class

JPY 3,183,181,205

JPY 6,534.5459

Ordinary Unit Class
Distribution

USD 186,855,272

USD 10.4796
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EUR Unit Class EUR 10,713,962 EUR 139.6292 EUR 14,042,047 EUR 131.4413
JPY Unit Class JPY 3,840,748,907 JPY 7,054.5161 | JPY 4,207,502,358 JPY 6,872.7247
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11.

Dividends

The Trust may declare and distribute dividends to Unitholders holding the JPY Unit Class and the

Ordinary Unit Class out of 1ts net income and/or out of its realised profits less realised and

unrealised losses attributable to that Unit Class for the relevant period. The JPY Unit Class may

declare and distribute dividends every other month. The Ordinary Unit Class may declare and

distribute dividends on a monthly basis.

The following dividends were declared by the Fund during the year ended 30 November 2014:

JPY Unit Class
Ex-Date Pay-Date Description JPY
15/01/2014 21/01/2014 Dividend of JPY100.00 per unit 58,410,413
17/03/2014 20/03/2014 Dividend of JPY100.00 per unit 59,898,109
15/05/2014 20/05/2014 Dividend of JPY100.00 per unit 60,401,386
15/07/2014 18/07/2014 Dividend of JPY100.00 per unit 58,801,416
16/09/2014 19/09/2014 Dividend of JPY100.00 per unit 57,734,660
17/11/2014 20/11/2014 Dividend of JPY100.00 per unit 54,635,461
Ordinary Unit Class Distribution
Ex-Date Pay-Date Description usb
16/12/2013 19/12/2013 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,370,146
15/01/2014 21/01/2014 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,282,257
18/02/2014 21/02/2014 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,214,974
17/03/2014 20/03/2014 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,190,543
15/04/2014 22/04/2014 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,151,782
15/05/2014 20/05/2014 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,173,074
16/06/2014 19/06/2014 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,178,369
15/07/2014 18/07/2014 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,201,521
18/08/2014 21/08/2014 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,152,028
16/09/2014 19/09/2014 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,132,408
15/10/2014 20/10/2014 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,115,460
17/11/2014 20/11/2014 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,096,827
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11. Dividends (continued)

The following dividends were declared by the Fund during the year ended 30 November 2013:

JPY Unit Class
Ex-Date Pay-Date Description JPY
15/01/2013 18/01/2013 Dividend of JPY100.00 per unit 48,710,969
15/03/2013 21/03/2013 Dividend of JPY100.00 per unit 52,959,435
15/05/2013 21/05/2013 Dividend of JPY100.00 per unit 55,352,233
16/07/2013 19/07/2013 Dividend of JPY100.00 per unit 60,732,690
17/09/2013 20/09/2013 Dividend of JPY100.00 per unit 59,934,347
15/11/2013 20/11/2013 Dividend of JPY100.00 per unit 60,612,160

Ordinary Unit Class Distribution
Ex-Date Pay-Date Description usb
17/12/2012 20/12/2012 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,421,826
15/01/2013 18/01/2013 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,392,707
15/02/2013 21/02/2013 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,488,405
15/03/2013 21/03/2013 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,593,691
15/04/2013 18/04/2013 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,627,597
15/05/2013 21/05/2013 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,696,049
17/06/2013 20/06/2013 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,679,529
16/07/2013 19/07/2013 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,623,772
16/08/2013 21/08/2013 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,571,917
17/09/2013 20/09/2013 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,507,760
15/10/2013 18/10/2013 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,471,996
15/11/2013 20/11/2013 Dividend of USD 0.08 per unit 1,439,633

12.  Financial Investments and Associated Risks

The Fund invests all, or substantially all, of its assets in the Master Portfolio, as outlined in

Note 1.
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12.

@

Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

The Fund®s investing activities expose it to various types of risks that are associated with the
financial investments and markets inwhich it and the Master Portfolio invest (the “Investment
Risks”). The Fund"s investment portfolio is comprised of collective investment schemes at year
end. The Board of the Manager has appointed the Investment Advisor to manage the investment risks
of the Fund. The significant types of financial risks which the Fund is exposed to through the
Master Portfolio are market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The prospectus provides details
of these and other types of risk some of which are additional to that information provided in these
financial statements.

Asset allocation of the Master Portfolio is determined by the Master Portfolio®s Investment
Advisor, who manages the allocation of assets to achieve the investment objectives as detailed in
Note 2. Achievement of the Master Portfolio"s investment objectives involves taking risks. The
Master Portfolio"s Investment Advisor exercises judgement based on analysis, research and risk
management techniques when making investment decisions. Divergence from the benchmark and/or the
target asset allocation and the composition of the portfolio is monitored by the Master
Portfolio®s Investment Advisor.

The risk management policies employed by the Fund"s and Master Portfolio™s Investment Advisor are
detailed below:

Market Risk

The potential for changes in the fair value of the Fund"s investment in the Master Portfolio is
referred to as market risk. Commonly used categories of market risk include currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk.

(i) Currency risks may result from exposures to changes in spot prices, forward prices and
volatilities of currency rates.

(i1) Interest rate risks may result from exposures to changes in the level, slope and curvature

of the various yield curves, the volatility of interest rates, mortgage prepayment speeds
and credit spreads.
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12.  Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

(a) MarketRisk (continued)

(iii) Other price risks are the risk that the value of an investment will fluctuate as a result of

changes in market prices other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk
and may result from exposures to changes in the prices and volatilities of individual
equities, equity baskets, equity indices and commodities.

The Master Portfolio®"s market risk strategy is driven by its investment risk and return
objectives.

The Master Portfolio™s Investment Advisor and Sub-Advisor manage market risk through the
application of risk budgeting principles. The Investment Advisor determines an appropriate risk
target, commonly referred to as Tracking Error, employing a risk budgeting framework.

A Market Risk Analysis Group at Goldman Sachs (* IMD MRA™) is responsible for independently
monitoring, analysing and reporting the market risks taken by the Investment Advisors. IMD MRA
uses a number of risk metrics to monitor the market risks including monitoring sensitivities and
Tracking Error. IMD MRA presents on the market risks to the Board no less frequently than semi-
annually.

Details of the Trust”s investment portfolio at the reporting date are disclosed in the Schedule of
Investments.

(i) Currency Risk

The Master Portfolio, inwhich the Fund invests, may invest in financial investments and enter
into transactions denominated in currencies other than its functional currency. Consequently,
the Master Portfolio may be exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its functional currency
relative to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value
of that portion of the Master Portfolio®s assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency.
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12.

@

Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

(i) Currency Risk (continued)

When an investor invests into a unit class which is in a different currency to the functional
currency of the Fund inwhich it invests, the currency risk of the investor will be different to the
currency risk of the Fund.

The following tables set forth a sensitivity analysis showing gains and losses in the Master
Portfolio that would be associated with changes in the currency markets. This sensitivity
analysis is based on a change in one currency versus the base currency of the Master Portfolio
while holding all other currencies constant. For the Total Portfolio, monetary and non-monetary,
the assumption is that all currencies move simultaneously against the base currency of the Master
Portfolio.

Currency Risk as at 30-Nov-2014
Base Currency is US$
Impact on NAV for 15% Base Currency

Currency — —

Appreciation Depreciation
TRY (2.0%) 2.0%
ZAR (1.7%) 1.7%
MXN (1.6%) 1.6%
CNH 1.5% (1.5%)
PLN (1.4%) 1.4%
MYR (1.4%) 1.4%
Other (6.7%) 6.7%
Total Portfolio (13.3%) 13.3%
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12.  Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

(a) MarketRisk (continued)

(i) Currency Risk (continued)

Currency Risk as at 30-Nov-2013
Base Currency is US$
Impact on NAV for 15% Base Currency

Currency —— —

Appreciation Depreciation
MYR (2.1%) 2.1%
MXN (2.0%) 2.0%
ZAR (1.7%) 1.7%
PLN (1.6%) 1.6%
THB (1.2%) 1.2%
RUB (1.2%) 1.2%
Other (5.6%) 5.6%
Total Portfolio (15.4%) 15.4%

The above analysis illustrates gains and losses in the Master Portfolio that are associated with
changes in the currency market that are reasonably possible over a one year period. These do not
include stress scenarios when market moves and changes in correlations and liquidity may result in
larger overall gains or losses.

(i1) Interest Rate Risk

The Master Portfolio, inwhich the Fund invests, may invest in fixed income securities. Any change
to the relevant interest rates for particular securities may result in the Investment Advisor
being unable to secure similar returns on the expiry of the contracts or the sale of securities. In
addition, changes to prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of future rates may
result in an increase or decrease in the value of the securities held. Ingeneral, if interest
rates rise, the value of the fixed income securitieswill decline. Adecline in interest rateswill
in general have the opposite effect. All fixed income securities and floating rate securities,
together with their coupon and maturity date are disclosed in the Schedule of Investments of the
Master Portfolio.

The Master Portfolio may invest in instruments in desired currencies at fixed, floating and zero
rates of interest.

141/228



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o =S 25
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Goldman Sachs Global Funds

Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 November 2014

12.  Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

(a) MarketRisk (continued)

(i1) Interest Rate Risk (continued)

The following tables set forth the interest rate exposures for various currencies in the Master

Portfolio and gains and losses that are associated with changes in the interest rates. This

sensitivity analysis is based on a change in the interest rates applicable to one currency while

holding all other interest rates constant. For the Total Portfolio, the assumption is that all

interest rates move simultaneously by the same number of basis points. A parallel shift of 75bps or

100bps means that all interest rates along a curve will change by either a 75bps to 100bps increase

or decrease (i.e. a0.75% or 1.0% increase or decrease).

Interest Rate Risk as at 30-Nov-2014
Impact on NAV for parallel shift!

Currency -

Higher Lower
usD 0.7% (0.7%)
ZAR (0.6%) 0.6%
BRL (0.6%) 0.6%
IDR (0.5%) 0.5%
MXN (0.5%) 0.5%
THB (0.5%) 0.5%
Other (1.9%) 1.9%
Total Portfolio (3.9%) 3.9%
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12.  Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

(a) MarketRisk (continued)

(i1) Interest Rate Risk (continued)

Interest Rate Risk as at 30-Nov-2013
Impact on NAV for parallel shift!

Currency -

Higher Lower
BRL (1.1%) 1.1%
MXN (1.0%) 1.0%
KRW 0.9% (0.9%)
ZAR (0.6%) 0.6%
COoP (0.5%) 0.5%
usD 0.4% (0.4%)
Other (1.5%) 1.5%
Total Portfolio (3.4%) 3.4%

IHigher/Lower parallel shift for interest rates represent a higher/lower 75bps parallel shift in
the yield curve for developed interest rates and a higher/lower 100bps shift for emerging markets
interest rates.

The above analysis illustrates gains and losses that are associated with changes in the interest
rate market that are reasonably possible and exclude changes in the slope of both interest and
credit curves. These scenarios also do not include stress scenarios when market moves and changes
in correlations and liquidity may result in larger overall gains or losses.

(iii) Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that the value of a financial investment will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices, other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk
whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or any factor affecting
financial investments traded in the market.

As the Master Portfolio®s financial investments are carried at fair value with fair value changes

recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, all changes in market conditions will
directly affect Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.
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12.  Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

(a) MarketRisk (continued)

(iii) Other Price Risk (continued)

The Trust®s investments in collective investment schemes are based upon the net asset values per
share as supplied by the funds, in accordance with the valuation policy of the applicable fund as
outlined in its prospectus. While it is expected that the assets of the collective investment
schemes will general ly be valued by an independent third party administrator or other service
provider, there may be circumstances inwhich certain securities or other assets of a collective
investment scheme may not have a readily ascertainable market price. In such circumstances, the
manager of the relevant collective investment scheme may be required to value such securities or
instruments.

The Master Portfolio has no significant exposure to other price risk.

Currency, interest rate and other price risks are managed by the Master Portfolio*s Investment
Advisor as part of the integrated market risk management processes described above.

(iv) Limitations of Sensitivity Analysis

Some of the limitations of the sensitivity analysis tables above include:

the analysis is based on historical data and cannot take account of the fact that future market
price movements, correlations between markets and levels of market liquidity may bear no
relation to historical patterns;

the analysis is a relative estimate of risk rather than a precise and accurate number;

the analysis represents a hypothetical outcome and is not intended to be predictive; and
future market conditions could vary significantly from those experienced in the past.
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12.

(b)

Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. Among other things liquidity could be impaired by an inability to access secured and /or
unsecured sources of financing, an inability to sell assets or unforeseen outflows of cash or
collateral. This situation may arise due to circumstances outside of the Fund"s control, such as a
general market disruption or an operational problem affecting the Fund or third parties. Also, the
ability to sell assets may be impaired if other market participants are seeking to sell similar
assets at the same time.

The Fund®s investment in the Master Portfolio may impose greater restrictions on redemptions than
those imposed by the Fund. This may include offering less frequent redemption dates than are
offered by the Fund to its unitholders.

The Fund provides for the subscription and redemption of units and it is therefore exposed to the
liguidity risk associated with unitholder redemptions in accordance with the terms in the
Prospectus. These terms include the discretion to pay redemption distributions in cash or in kind
or to limit redemptions to 10% of the Net Asset Value on any dealing day. Where redemption
distributions are in kind the unitholder may request that the Investment Advisor sell the assets
and distribute the cash proceeds to the unitholder.

The Fund”s prospectus provides for the daily subscription of units and the daily redemption of
shares. The Fund is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting unitholder redemptions.

As at 30 November 2014, the Fund"s investment in the Master Portfolio is 7.88% of the Master

Portfolio"s net assets (as at 30 November 2013: 11.22%). The following tables set forth details of
the Unitholders with holdings greater than 10% of the Fund®s net assets.
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12.  Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

(b) Liquidity Risk (continued)

Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder

30-Nov-2014 30-Nov-2013

Unitholder 1! 50.00% Unitholder 11 51.00%
Unitholder 21 48.00% Unitholder 21 47.00%
Other Unitholders 2.00% Other Unitholders 2.00%
Total 100.00% Total 100.00%

Unitholder is aDistributor.

Note: Unitholders are shown in order of holding at the specific period end so Unitholder 1 on 30
November 2014 may not be the same as Unitholder 1 on 30 November 2013.

As at 30 November 2014 and 30 November 2013, all financial liabilities were payable within three
months of year end.

(c) Credit Risk

Credit and counterparty risks are the risk that one party to a financial investmentwill cause a
financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

The Master Portfolio"s Investment Advisor has adopted procedures to reduce credit risk related to
its dealings with counterparties. Before transacting with any counterparty, the Investment
Advisor or its related parties evaluate both credit-worthiness and reputation by conducting a
credit analysis of the party, their business and reputation. The credit risk of approved
counterparties is then monitored on an ongoing basis, including periodic reviews of financial
statements and interim financial reports as needed.

The Fund, and the Master Portfolio inwhich it invests, are subject to a number of risks relating to

the insolvency, administration, liquidation or other formal protection from creditors
(“insolvency”) of the Trustee. These risks include without limitation:
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12.  Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

(c) Credit Risk (continued)

i. The loss of all cash held with the Trustee which is not being treated as client money both
at the level of the Trustee (“client money”).

ii. The loss of all cashwhich the Trustee has failed to treat as client money in accordance
with procedures (if any) agreed with the Trust.

iii. The loss of some or all of any securities held on trust which have not been properly
segregated and so identified both at the level of the Trustee (“trust assets”) or client
money held by or with the Trustee.

iv. The loss of some or all assets due to the incorrect operation of accounts by the Trustee or
due to the process of identifying and transferring the relevant Trust Assets and/or
client money including any deduction to meet the administrative costs of an insolvency.

V. Losses caused by prolonged delays in receiving transfers of balances and regaining
control over the relevant assets.

An insolvency could cause severe disruption to the Fund"s investment activity. In some
circumstances, this could cause the Directors of the Manager to temporarily suspend the
calculation of the Net Asset Value and deal ings in Units.

At 30 November 2014 and 30 November 2013, the following financial assets of the Trust were exposed
to credit risk: investments, cash and other receivables. The carrying amounts of financial assets

best reflect the maximum credit risk exposure at the reporting date.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date can be analysed as fol lows:

30-Nov-2014 30-Nov-2013
Assets Us$ USs$
Investments - Long 193,929,534 293,358,433
Reimbursement from Investment Advisor 105,563 -
Receivable for fund units sold 846 889,441
Receivable for investments sold 606,874 459,727
Total Assets 194,642,817 294,707,601
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12.  Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

(c) Credit Risk (continued)

The table below sets forth concentrations of counterparty or issuer credit risk greater than 5% of
the Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units:

Year ended 30-Nov-2014 Year ended 30-Nov-2013
% of % of
Institution Capacity Net Institution Capacity Net
Assets Assets
Goldman Sachs Growth Goldman Sachs Growth

. & Emerging Markets -
Collective Debt Local Portfolio Collective

Debt Local Portfolio . 0
(a sub-fund of Investment | 100.14% (a sub-fund of Investment | 100.17%
Scheme Scheme

Goldman Sachs Funds Goldman Sachs Funds
SICAV) SICAV)

& Emerging Markets

No counterparties or issuers are rated below investment grade. Counterparties or issuers are
elther rated investment grade in their own right or if not rated then an entity in the corporate
fami ly tree has such a rating and the Credit Risk Management and Advisory department of the
Investment Advisor believes there is strong implicit support from the rated entity to the
counterparty.

(d) Additional Risks
(i) Concentration Risk

The Trust may invest in a limited number of investments and investment themes. A consequence of a
limited number of investments is that performance may be more favourably or unfavourably affected
by the performance of an individual investment.

(i1) Operational Risk

Operational risk is the potential for loss caused by a deficiency in information, communications,
transaction processing and settlement, and accounting systems. The Trust"s service providers as
shown on page 2, maintain controls and procedures for the purpose of helping to manage operational
risk. Reviews of the service levels of service providers are performed on a regular basis by the
Investment Advisor. No assurance is given that these measures will be 100% effective.
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12.

(D

13.

Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

Additional Risks (continued)

(iii) Legal, Tax and Regulatory Risks

Legal, tax and regulatory changes could occur during the duration of the Trust which may adversely
affect the Trust.

With respect to tax, the Trust may be subject to taxation on capital gains, interest and dividends
in certain jurisdictions where the Trust invests.

The interpretation and applicability of the tax law and regulations by tax authorities at times
may not be clear or consistent. Tax obligations where probable and estimable are recorded as
liabilities. However, some tax obligations are subject to uncertainty and may result in
additional tax liabilities, interest and penalties based on future actions, interpretations or
judgements of these authorities covering current and past tax positions. Accounting standards may
also change, creating or removing an obligation for the Trust to accrue for a potential tax
liability. Consequently, it is possible that certain potential tax obligations which currently
are not probable may become so which may result in additional tax liabilities for a Trust in the
future and these additional liabilities may be material. Because of the foregoing uncertainties,
the NAV may not reflect the tax liabilities ultimately borne by the Trust, including at the time of
any subscriptions, redemptions or exchanges of interests in the Trust, which could have an adverse
impact on investors at that time.

Additional details of risks not disclosed in these Financial Statements can be found in the
Prospectus.

Credit Institutions

There was no cash held at credit institutions for the year ended 30 November 2014 (year ended 30
November 2013: Nil).
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Bank Overdraft

Bank overdrafts are held at the following institutions:

Counterparty 30-Nov-2014 30-Nov-2013

Use US$ % of Net Assets Us$ % of Net Assets
State Street Bank and Trust a) 597 0.00% 234 0.00%
Company
Total 527 0.00% 234 0.00%

a) Unrestricted - Trustee Cash Account.

Cash Flow Statement

The Trust has elected to apply the exemption available to open-ended investment funds under FRS 1
(revised 1996) “Cash Flow Statements”, not to prepare a cash flow statement.

Statement of Changes in the Portfolio

The Material Portfolio Changes reflect the aggregate purchases of a security exceeding one per
cent of the total value of purchases for the period and aggregate disposals greater than one per
cent of the total value of the sales. The Material Portfolio Changes are shown on page 30.

Exchange Rates

The fol lowing exchange rates (against the US$) were used to convert the investments and other
assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the US$:

Currency 30-Nov-2014 30-Nov-2013

Us$ Us$
Euro (EUR) 0.803310 0.734889
Japanese Yen (JPY) 118.205000 102.275000

Soft Commissions

The Trust did not enter into any third party soft commission arrangements, or pay commissions for
research and/or execution for the years ended 30 November 2014 and 30 November 2013.
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19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Contingent Liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities as at 30 November 2014 and 30 November 2013.

Prospectus

The latest prospectus of the Trust was issued on 29 May 2014.

Subsequent Events

Alan Shuch resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager as of 5 March 2015.

Indemnifications

The Trust may enter into contracts that contain a variety of indemnifications. The Trust®s maximum
exposure under these arrangements is unknown. However, the Trust has not had prior claims or
losses pursuant to these contracts.

Approval of the Audited Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Manager approved the audited financial statements on 24 March 2015.
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Investments — Long

Fair Value % of

Holdings Description US$ Net Assets

Collective Investment Schemes

United States Dollar

Goldman Sachs Growth & Emerging Markets Debt Local
29,927,397 Portfolio 193,929,534 100.14
- Class “IX0” Share Class® (®)

Total Collective Investment Schemes 193,929,534 100.14
Total Investments — Long 193,929,534 100.14

30-Nov-2014 30-Nov-2013
Fair Value % of Fair Value % of
US$ Net Assets US$ Net Assets

Total Investments

Investments - Long 193,929,534 100.14 293,358,433 100.17
Other Assets and Liabilities (276,868) (0.14) (492,614) (0.17)

Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable 193,652,666 100.00 292,865,819 100.00
Participating Units

Analysis of Total Assets % of Total Assets
Collective Investment Schemes 99.63
Other current assets 0.37
Total assets 100.00

@ A related party to Goldman Sachs Global Funds.
(® The Fund was invested in the non-Investment Advisory fee bearing share class of the Goldman Sachs
Growth & Emerging Markets Debt Local Portfolio.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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2014 11 30

2,437,176,126 292,875,455
58,768,862 7,062,254
68,721 8,258
15,909,834 1,911,885
196,578 23,623
29,415,038 3,534,805
39,525,734 4,749,807
25,028,415 3,007,665
1,891,612 227,315
80,101 9,626
37,307,807 4,483,279
12,982,063 1,560,055
217,363 26,121
2,658,568,254 319,480,147
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356,953 42,895
4,735,000 569,005
61,579,872 7,400,053
676,374 81,280
37,628,731 4,521,845
6,103,062 733,405
69,553,444 8,358,237
4,825,000 579,820
5,568,554 669,173
5,355,546 643,576
167 20
1,495,631 179,730
136,607 16,416
19,829 2,383
41,069 4,935
46,303 5,564
124,755 14,992
19,244 2,313
29,304 3,521
7,004 842
131,018 15,744
42,285 5,081
21,149 2,541
1,404 169
61,059 7,337
198,559,364 23,860,879
2,460,008,890 295,619,268
2,460,008,890 295,619,268
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2014 11 30

164,643 19,785
135,886,882 16,329,527
10,628,299 1,277,203
5,434,829 653,103
152,114,653 18,279,618
17,895,365 2,150,486
1,730,065 207,902
261,568 31,433
91,334 10,976
384,479 46,203
27,079 3,254
231,190 27,782
121,846 14,642
15,480 1,860
122,903 14,769
31,697 3,809
38,505 4,627
11,244 1,351
427,523 51,375
21,390,278 2,570,470
539 65

108,649 13,056
21,498,388 2,583,461
565,557 67,963
130,050,708 15,628,194
72,754,764 8,742,940
(27,609, 867) (3.317,878)
(217,894,217) (26,184,348)
(29,775,151) (3,578,080)
(202,524,471) (24,337,366)
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2,558,626 307,470
(208, 286) (25,030)
(6,996) (841)
(4,512,349) (542,249)
11,030,584 1,325,545
8,861,579 1,064,896
(63,612,184) (7,644,276)
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2014 11 30

2,610,285,092 313,677,960
99,145,217 11,914,281

894,221,498 107,458,597

(941,161,761) (113,099,409)

(63,612,184) (7.644,276)

(138,868,972) (16,687,884)

2014 11 30 2,460,008,890 295,619,268
2,460,008,890 295,619,268
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2014 11 30
(b)
@
( ) ()
-3.03%
14,250,000 Banco Santander Brasil S.A. BRL 8.000% 18/03/2016 5,341,802 0.22
3,260,000 Alliance Global Group, Inc. usb 6.500% 18/08/2017 3,528,885 0.14
11,840,000 Mestenio Ltd. usb 8.500% 02/01/2020 12,513,933 0.51
16,042,818 0.65
6,350,000 CITIC Ltd. usb 6.800% 17/01/2023 7,484,715 0.30
4,550,000 KazMunayGas National Co. JSC usb 9.125% 02/07/2018 5,300,750 0.22
139,590,000 America Movil SAB de CV MXN 6.000% 09/06/2019 10,319,352 0.42
10,000,000 Transnet SOC Ltd. ZAR 9.250% 14/11/2017 957,174 0.04
35,000,000 Transnet SOC Ltd. ZAR 10.500% 17/09/2020 3,419,714 0.14
21,000,000 Transnet SOC Ltd. ZAR 10.800% 06/11/2023 2,111,434 0.09
8,000,000 Transnet SOC Ltd. ZAR 9.500% 19/08/2025 734,048 0.03
241,000,000 Transnet SOC Ltd. ZAR 10.000% 30/03/2029 22,267,792 0.90
29,490,162 1.20
910,000 Petroleos de Venezuela S.A. usb 6.000% 16/05/2024 412,912 0.01
440,000 Petroleos de Venezuela S.A. usb 5.500% 12/04/2037 191,290 0.01
604,202 0.02
83,431,124 ) 74,583,801 3.03
-62.94%

77,030,000 Argentine Republic Government International Bond(®)  USD 8.475% 15/12/2035 6,586,065 0.27
31,605,000 Brazil Letras do Tesouro Nacional BRL 11.576% 01/01/2015 12,125,258 0.49
9,999,000 Brazil Letras do Tesouro Nacional BRL 12.010% 01/04/2015 3,731,517 0.15
103,295,000 Brazil Letras do Tesouro Nacional BRL 12.515% 01/01/2016 35,262,445 1.43
5,393,200 Brazil Letras do Tesouro Nacional BRL 12.150% 01/07/2017 15,564,653 0.63
22,267,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series B BRL 6.000% 15/08/2016 22,150,410 0.90
16,799,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series B BRL 6.000% 15/05/2017 16,583,809 0.68
48,342,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series B BRL 6.000% 15/08/2040 49,378,893 2.01
11,557,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series B BRL 6.000% 15/08/2050 11,834,380 0.48
20,286,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series F BRL 10.000% 01/01/2018 7,817,812 0.32
66,613,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series F BRL 10.000% 01/01/2019 25,418,619 1.03
125,197,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series F BRL 10.000% 01/01/2023 46,031,122 1.87
32,300,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series F BRL 10.000% 01/01/2025 11,711,795 0.48
257,610,713 10.47
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2014 11 30
(b)
@ ( ) ()
2,664,076,450 Bonos de la Tesoreria de la Republica CLP 3.000% 01/01/2015 4,463,267 0.18
1,780,143,250 Bonos del Banco Central de Chile en UF CLP 3.000% 01/03/2022 3,269,473 0.13
7,732,740 0.31
8,394,000,000 Colombia Government International Bond CopP 12.000% 22/10/2015 4,032,690 0.16
4,883,000,000 Colombia Government International Bond CopP 12.000% 22/10/2015 2,345,917 0.09
1,053,000,000 Colombia Government International Bond CoP 4.375% 21/03/2023 436,314 0.02
3,920,100,000 Colombian TES "B" CoP 11.250% 24/10/2018 2,138,357 0.09
2,572,200,000 Colombian TES "B" CoP 8.000% 28/10/2015 1,200,419 0.05
161,969,500,000 Colombian TES "B" coP 7.000% 04/05/2022 76,415,255 3.11
9,041,900,000 Colombian TES "B" CoP 7.500% 26/08/2026 4,324,562 0.18
74,168,500,000 Colombian TES "B" COoP 6.000% 28/04/2028 31,134,593 1.26
122,028,107 4.96
17,230,000 Croatia Government International Bond EUR 3.875% 30/05/2022 22,419,443 0.91
2,200,000 Republic of Honduras usb 8.750% 16/12/2020 2,508,000 0.10
471,100,000 Hungary Government Bond HUF 6.750% 24/11/2017 2,155,644 0.09
295,860,000 Hungary Government Bond HUF 4.000% 25/04/2018 1,257,524 0.05
932,640,000 Hungary Government Bond HUF 5.500% 20/12/2018 4,190,747 0.17
5,316,350,000 Hungary Government Bond HUF 6.500% 24/06/2019 25,039,297 1.02
7,009,270,000 Hungary Government Bond HUF 3.500% 24/06/2020 29,257,393 1.19
2,635,410,000 Hungary Government Bond HUF 7.500% 12/11/2020 13,276,223 0.54
3,024,490,000 Hungary Government Bond HUF 7.000% 24/06/2022 15,241,430 0.62
989,260,000 Hungary Government Bond HUF 6.000% 24/11/2023 4,802,282 0.20
4,124,190,000 Hungary Government Bond HUF 5.500% 24/06/2025 19,551,953 0.79
2,351,010,000 Hungary Government Bond HUF 6.750% 22/10/2028 12,420,414 0.50
127,192,907 5.17
11,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond IDR 6.125% 15/05/2028 770 0.00
2,085,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond IDR 9.000% 15/03/2029 186,393 0.01
2,190,000 Perusahaan Penerbit SBSN Indonesia 111 usb 3.300% 21/11/2022 2,107,875 0.08
12,530,000 Perusahaan Penerbit SBSN Indonesia 111 usb 4.350% 10/09/2024 12,714,817 0.52
15,009,855 0.61
83,200,000 Israel Treasury Bill — Makam ILS 0.190% 06/05/2015 21,331,386 0.87
14,800 Mexican Bonos MXN 6.250% 16/06/2016 1,115 0.00
2,030,144,300 Mexican Bonos MXN 4.750% 14/06/2018 148,075,979 6.02
14,109,200 Mexican Bonos MXN 8.000% 11/06/2020 1,164,412 0.05
37,114,300 Mexican Bonos MXN 6.500% 09/06/2022 2,840,225 0.12
33,132,100 Mexican Bonos MXN 8.000% 07/12/2023 2,778,350 0.11
90,280,000 Mexican Bonos MXN 10.000% 05/12/2024 8,627,257 0.35
49,591,000 Mexican Bonos MXN 8.500% 31/05/2029 4,345,496 0.18
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10,231,900 Mexican Bonos MXN 7.750% 29/05/2031 838,778 0.03
410,700 Mexican Bonos MXN 10.000% 20/11/2036 41,402 0.00
72,809,056 Mexican Udibonos MXN 5.000% 16/06/2016 5,648,010 0.23
10,746,320 Mexican Udibonos MXN 3.500% 14/12/2017 838,233 0.03
175,199,257 7.12
428,000,000 Philippine Government International Bond PHP 3.900% 26/11/2022 9,388,264 0.38
148,210,000 Poland Government Bond PLN 3.250% 25/07/2019 46,663,079 1.89
212,450,000 Poland Government Bond PLN 5.750% 23/09/2022 79,182,773 3.22
99,080,000 Poland Government Bond PLN 3.250% 25/07/2025 31,941,031 1.30
157,786,883 6.41
53,810,000 Romania Government Bond RON 5.900% 26/07/2017 16,573,074 0.67
39,490,000 Romania Government Bond RON 4.750% 24/06/2019 12,093,576 0.49
65,460,000 Romania Government Bond RON 5.950% 11/06/2021 21,303,413 0.87
49,970,063 2.03
1,165,000,000 Russian Federal Bond — Eurobond RUB 7.850% 10/03/2018 21,894,123 0.89
872,480,000 Russian Federal Bond — OFZ Bonds RUB 6.200% 31/01/2018 15,658,165 0.64
848,880,000 Russian Federal Bond — OFZ Bonds RUB 7.500% 27/02/2019 15,468,413 0.63
404,130,000 Russian Federal Bond — OFZ Bonds RUB 6.700% 15/05/2019 7,111,524 0.29
49,290,000 Russian Federal Bond — OFZ Bonds RUB 7.600% 14/04/2021 869,366 0.03
691,950,000 Russian Federal Bond — OFZ Bonds RUB 7.600% 20/07/2022 11,994,034 0.49
516,500,000 Russian Federal Bond — OFZ Bonds RUB 7.000% 25/01/2023 8,560,123 0.35
837,090,000 Russian Federal Bond — OFZ Bonds RUB 7.000% 16/08/2023 13,780,027 0.56
1,255,920,000 Russian Federal Bond — OFZ Bonds RUB 7.050% 19/01/2028 19,478,043 0.79
114,813,818 4.67
8,950,000 South Africa Government Bond ZAR 8.000% 21/12/2018 849,369 0.04
164,380,000 South Africa Government Bond ZAR 8.250% 31/03/2032 14,878,464 0.61
56,840,000 South Africa Government Bond ZAR 8.500% 31/01/2037 5,224,450 0.21
85,370,000 South Africa Government Bond ZAR 8.750% 31/01/2044 7,924,272 0.32
118,980,000 South Africa Government Bond ZAR 8.750% 28/02/2048 11,128,577 0.45
40,005,132 1.63
70,850,000 Bank of Thailand THB 2.950% 14/01/2016 2,181,453 0.09
566,400,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.125% 11/12/2015 17,456,350 0.71
70,400,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 4.125% 18/11/2016 2,228,292 0.09
811,500,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.250% 16/06/2017 25,390,596 1.03
149,050,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.875% 13/06/2019 4,835,940 0.20
697,480,734 Thailand Government Bond THB 1.200% 14/07/2021 20,487,963 0.83
2,760,475,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.650% 17/12/2021 89,378,438 3.63
893,780,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.625% 16/06/2023 28,935,049 1.18
340,420,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.580% 17/12/2027 10,795,850 0.44
22,140,055 Thailand Government Bond THB 1.250% 12/03/2028 615,623 0.03
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86,900,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.775% 25/06/2032 2,759,257 0.11
205,064,811 8.34
107,460,000 Turkey Government Bond TRY 9.000% 08/03/2017 49,983,197 2.03
106,830,000 Turkey Government Bond TRY 8.300% 20/06/2018 49,278,189 2.00
11,710,000 Turkey Government Bond TRY 8.800% 14/11/2018 5,490,677 0.22
83,490,000 Turkey Government Bond TRY 10.400% 27/03/2019 41,526,885 1.69
78,230,000 Turkey Government Bond TRY 8.500% 10/07/2019 36,521,845 1.49
9,360,000 Turkey Government Bond TRY 9.500% 12/01/2022 4,618,066 0.19
1,170,000 Turkey Government Bond TRY 7.100% 08/03/2023 503,751 0.02
47,440,000 Turkey Government Bond TRY 9.000% 24/07/2024 23,166,850 0.94
211,089,460 8.58
880,000 Venezuela Government International Bond usb 9.000% 07/05/2023 479,600 0.02
2,310,000 Venezuela Government International Bond usb 8.250% 13/10/2024 1,201,200 0.05
1,520,000 Venezuela Government International Bond usb 9.250% 07/05/2028 813,200 0.03
170,000 Venezuela Government International Bond usb 7.000% 31/03/2038 83,300 0.01
2,577,300 0.11
1,686,272,757 ) 1,548,314,204 62.94

-1.72%

Goldman Sachs US$ Liquid Reserves Fund (X

42,193,316 Distribution Class)UD(e) 42,193,316 1.72
42,193,316 ) 42,193,316 1.72
1,811,897,197 ) 1,665,091,321 67.69

-0.07%

4,190,000 Petroleos de Venezuela S.A. usb 6.000% 15/11/2026 1,844,648 0.07
1,955,448 ) 1,844,648 0.07
-24_.67%

11,276,000,000 Colombian TES-Citigroup Funding, Inc. CoP 11.000% 27/07/2020 6,382,681 0.26
4,360,000,000 Colombian TES-Citigroup Funding, Inc. CoP 11.000% 25/07/2024 2,465,103 0.10
27,653,000,000 Colombian TES-Citigroup Funding, Inc. 144A(H CoP 11.250% 25/10/2018 15,084,309 0.61
26,914,000,000 Colombian TES-Citigroup Funding, Inc. 144A(P) COoP 11.250% 25/10/2018 14,681,196 0.60

38,613,289 1.57
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232,000,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Barclays Bank Plc. IDR 10.000% 17/07/2017 20,217,306 0.82
90,100,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Deutsche Bank AG 144A() IDR 7.000% 17/05/2022 7,087,512 0.29
155,600,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Deutsche Bank AG 144A(P) IDR 7.000% 17/05/2022 12,239,921 0.50
48,700,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Deutsche Bank AG 144A(P) IDR 7.000% 17/05/2027 3,692,205 0.15
36,100,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Deutsche Bank AG 144A(P) IDR 8.250% 17/06/2032 2,991,325 0.12
46,009,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond- JPMorgan Chase Bank 144AC(H)  IDR 9.000% 19/03/2029 4,113,063  0.17
242,000,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-JPMorgan Chase Bank NA IDR 10.000% 17/07/2017 21,088,741 0.86
190,950,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond- JPMorgan Chase Bank NA IDR 10.000% 19/07/2017 16,640,063 0.68
72,460,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-JPMorgan Chase Bank NA IDR 7.000% 18/05/2027 5,493,577 0.22
54,704,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond- JPMorgan Chase Bank NA IDR 10.500% 19/08/2030 5,433,868 0.22
112,200,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond- JPMorgan Chase Bank NA IDR 6.625% 17/05/2033 7,927,274 0.32
175,000,000,000 ¢ylonesta Treasury Bond-Jeiorgan Chase Bank NA 144A 5o 10.000% 18/07/2017 15,250,123  0.62
134,507,000,000 ¢lonesta Treasury Bond-Jpiiorgan Chase Bank NA 144A o 6.125% 17/05/2028 9,415,945  0.38
83,307,000,000 (pyonesia Treasury Bond-JPiorgan Chase Bank NA 144A 5o 10.500%  19/08/2030 8,275,067  0.34
10,792,000,000 :ggone5|a Treasury Bond- JPMorgan Chase Bank NA 144A I0R 6.625% 17/05/2033 762,488 0.03
87,348,000,000 zgfone5|a Treasury Bond-JPMorgan Chase Bank NA 144A I0R 6.625% 17/05/2033 6,171,404 0.25
62,760,000, 000 ggfone5|a Treasury Bond- Standard Chartered Bank 144A IDR 8.375% 19/03/2024 5,391,991 0.22
34,994,000, 000 :ggone5|a Treasury Bond- Standard Chartered Bank 144A IDR 9.000% 19/03/2029 3,128,356 0.13
56,136,000, 000 zgfone5|a Treasury Bond- Standard Chartered Bank 144A I0R 9.000% 19/03/2029 5,018,386 0.20
21,146,000, 000 ggfone5|a Treasury Bond- Standard Chartered Bank 144A IDR 9.000% 19/03/2029 1,890,387 0.08
25,900,000, 000 :ggone5|a Treasury Bond- Standard Chartered Bank 144A IDR 9.000% 19/03/2029 2,315,380 0.09
128,256,000,000 zgfone5|a Treasury Bond- Standard Chartered Bank 144A I0R 9.000% 19/03/2029 11,465,691 0.47
375,279,000,000 ;222?%5'3 Treasury Bond-Standard Chartered Bank Ltd. o 9.000% 19/03/2029 33,548,786  1.36
9,869,000, 000 izgz?gfla Treasury Bond- Standard Chartered Bank Ltd. I0R 9.000% 19/03/2029 882,258 0.03
109, 700,000,000 ;232?%5'5‘ Treasury Bond-Standard Chartered Bank Ltd. o 9.000% 19/03/2029 9,806,842  0.40
220,247,959 8.95
79,580,000 Malaysia Government Bond MYR 3.741% 27/02/2015 23,548,387 0.96
21,620,000 Malaysia Government Bond MYR 3.197% 15/10/2015 6,377,756 0.26
15,610,000 Malaysia Government Bond MYR 3.260% 01/03/2018 4,557,243 0.18
50,880,000 Malaysia Government Bond MYR 3.654% 31/10/2019 14,979,252 0.61
16,620,000 Malaysia Government Bond MYR 4.378% 29/11/2019 5,056,018 0.20
21,180,000 Malaysia Government Bond MYR 3.889% 31/07/2020 6,308,603 0.26
14,260,000 Malaysia Government Bond MYR 4.160% 15/07/2021 4,310,673 0.17
21,970,000 Malaysia Government Bond MYR 4.048% 30/09/2021 6,596,326 0.27
6,760,000 Malaysia Government Bond MYR 3.418% 15/08/2022 1,944,901 0.08
18,480,000 Malaysia Government Bond MYR 3.480% 15/03/2023 5,321,639 0.22
85,630,000 Malaysia Government Bond MYR 4.181% 15/07/2024 25,967,978 1.05
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71,770,000 Malaysia Government Bond MYR 4.498% 15/04/2030 22,078,425 0.90
127,047,201 5.16
1,370,660,000 Nigeria Treasury Bill NGN 0.000% 07/05/2015 7,281,218 0.30
779,150,000 Nigeria Treasury Bill NGN 0.000% 04/06/2015 4,077,190 0.16
1,678,090,000 Nigeria Treasury Bill NGN 1.000% 03/09/2015 8,528,137 0.35
530,000,000 Nigeria Treasury Bond-Citigroup, Inc. 144A(P) NGN 16.000% 03/07/2019 3,209,387 0.13
613,000,000 Nigeria Treasury Bond-Citigroup, Inc. 144A(P) NGN 10.000% 27/07/2030 2,731,292 0.11
327,490,000 Nigeria Treasury Bond-HSBC Bank Plc. 144A() NGN 7.000% 23/10/2019 1,405,978 0.06
27,233,202 1.11
21,583,000 Peruvian Government International Bond PEN 5.200% 12/09/2023 7,343,421 0.30
71,714,000 Peruvian Government International Bond PEN 5.700% 12/08/2024 24,869,801 1.01
11,445,000 Peruvian Government International Bond PEN 8.200% 12/08/2026 4,735,013 0.19
140,000 Peruvian Government International Bond PEN 6.950% 12/08/2031 51,562 0.00
499,000 Peruvian Government International Bond PEN 6.900% 12/08/2037 180,375 0.01
684,000 Peruvian Government International Bond PEN 6.850% 12/02/2042 243,243 0.01
10,368,000 Peruvian Government International Bond 144A() PEN 5.700% 12/08/2024 3,595,534 0.15
41,018,949 1.67
36,500,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond usb 1.750% 30/09/2019 36,879,271 1.50
57,300,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond usb 1.500% 30/11/2019 57,156,750 2.32
38,200,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond usb 2.000% 31/10/2021 38,349,209 1.56
9,200,000 United States Treasury Note/Bond usb 3.000% 15/11/2044 9,315,718 0.38
141,700,948 5.76
18,710,000 Zambia Government Bond-Citigroup, Inc. ZMW 0.000% 20/05/2015 2,762,216 0.11
12,420,000 %2Fbla Government Bond- Standard Chartered Bank 144A ZM0 11.000% 06/09/2017 1,618,044 0.07
40,900,000 %2Fbla Government Bond- Standard Chartered Bank 144A 20 11.000% 20/02/2019 4,759,762 0.19
18,800,000 %gﬁbla Government Bond-Standard Chartered Bank 144A ZM0 13.000% 03/09/2024 1,894,748 0.08

11,034,770 0.45

669,386,761 ) 606,896,318  24.67
-1.26%
20,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "A" usb 5.500% 01/07/2026 15,193 0.00
30,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "A" usb 5.250% 01/07/2027 22,344 0.00
405,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "A" usb 5.750% 01/07/2028 306,605 0.01
95,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "A™ usb 5.125% 01/07/2031 68,022 0.00
70,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "A" usb 5.500% 01/07/2032 50,704 0.00
20,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "A" usb 5.000% 01/07/2034 13,797 0.00
55,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "A" usb 6.000% 01/07/2034 40,818 0.00
16,740,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "A" usb 8.000% 01/07/2035 14,438,920 0.59
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35,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "A" usb 5.125% 01/07/2037 24,559 0.00
340,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "A" usb 5.250% 01/07/2037 241,618 0.01
955,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "A" usb 5.500% 01/07/2039 681,001 0.03
370,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "A" usb 5.000% 01/07/2041 256,710 0.01
60,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "B" usb 5.875% 01/07/2036 43,597 0.00
195,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "B" usb 5.750% 01/07/2038 141,890 0.01
150,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "B" usb 6.000% 01/07/2039 111,086 0.00
125,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "C" usb 6.000% 01/07/2039 92,571 0.00
155,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "D" usb 5.750% 01/07/2041 112,084 0.01
55,000 Commonwealth of Puerto Rico "E" usb 5.625% 01/07/2032 40,259 0.00
185,000 ﬁzﬁrto Rico Commonwealth Aqueduct & Sewer Authority USD 5.000% 01/07/2033 128,605 0.01
390,000 ﬁxﬁrto Rico Commonwealth Aqueduct & Sewer Authority USD 5.750% 01/07/2037 280,800 0.01
275,000 Exsrto Rico Commonwealth Aqueduct & Sewer Authority USD 6.000% 01/07/2038 198,687 0.01
930,000 ﬁzﬁrto Rico Commonwealth Aqueduct & Sewer Authority USD 6.000% 01/07/2044 669,600 0.03
105,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "A" usb 5.250% 01/08/2027 84,048 0.00
1,565,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "A" usb 5.500% 01/08/2028 1,271,234 0.05
165,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "A" usb 6.125% 01/08/2029 138,298 0.01
2,065,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "A"(9) USD 0.000%/6.750% 01/08/2032 1,550,175 0.06
550,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "A"(9) USD 0.000%/6.250% 01/08/2033 313,203 0.01
100,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "A" usb 8.826% 01/08/2035 17,005 0.00
1,065,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "A" usb 5.500% 01/08/2037 799,921 0.03
895,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "A" usb 5.375% 01/08/2039 661,897 0.03
2,470,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "A" usb 5.500% 01/08/2042 1,835,704 0.08
410,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "A" usb 5.000% 01/08/2043 282,679 0.01
190,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "A" usb 5.250% 01/08/2043 136,456 0.01
1,330,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "B" usb 5.750% 01/08/2037 1,030,404 0.04
180,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "B" usb 6.375% 01/08/2039 151,047 0.01
3,015,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "B" usb 6.000% 01/08/2042 2,355,137 0.10
25,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "B" usb 6.500% 01/08/2044 20,456 0.00
270,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "C" usb 9.295% 01/08/2037 37,117 0.00
220,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "C" usb 8.417% 01/08/2038 27,709 0.00
190,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "C" usb 6.000% 01/08/2039 149,338 0.01
60,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "C" usb 5.250% 01/08/2040 47,560 0.00
2,450,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. "C" usb 5.250% 01/08/2041 1,791,464 0.07
30,680,322 1.25

315,000 Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corp. usb 5.375% 01/08/2038 231,175 0.01
31,465,604 ) 30,911,497 1.26
702,807,813 ) 639,652,463  26.00
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15,000,000 Toyota Finance Australia Ltd. MXN 3.760% 20/07/2017 1,071,236 0.04
57,100,000 21Vianet Group, Inc. CNH 6.875% 26/06/2017 8,935,057 0.36
71,000,000 China Unicom Hong Kong Ltd. CNH 4.000% 16/04/2017 11,535,238 0.47
50,000,000 Maikun Investment Co., Ltd. CNH 4.500% 06/06/2017 8,077,741 0.33
28,548,036 1.16
( 29,686,412 ) 29,619,272 1.20
-4.18%

2,565,000,000 Chile Government International Bond CLP 6.000% 01/01/2018 4,543,382 0.19
3,366,450,000 Costa Rica Government International Bond CRC 11.130% 28/03/2018 6,691,172 0.27
298,250,000 Costa Rica Government International Bond CRC 9.200% 27/03/2019 556,559 0.02
7,247,731 0.29
231,900,000 Dominican Republic International Bond DOP 16.950% 04/02/2022 6,795,899 0.27
278,600,000 Dominican Republic International Bond DOP 14.500% 10/02/2023 7,073,106 0.29
504,700,000 Dominican Republic International Bond DOP 18.500% 04/02/2028 14,950,623 0.61
28,819,628 1.17
51,820,000 Bank Negara Malaysia Monetary Notes MYR 0.000% 20/01/2015 15,252,538 0.62
119,300,000 Bank Negara Malaysia Monetary Notes MYR 0.000% 04/08/2015 34,456,214 1.40
11,040,000 Malaysia Government Investment lIssue MYR 4.444% 22/05/2024 3,349,208 0.14
53,057,960 2.16
295,900,000 Bank of Thailand THB 3.220% 01/03/2016 9,144,369 0.37
( 105,922,559 ) 102,813,070 4.18
( 135,608,971 ) 132,432,342 5.38
( 2,650,313,981 ) 2,437,176,126  99.07
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184 US Treasury Long Bond Futures 20/03/2015 26,128,000 68,721 0.00
68,721 0.00
( ) ( ) )

(82) German Federal Republic Bonds 10YR 08/12/2014 (15,626,952) (156,392) (0.01)
(192) US Treasury Bond Ultra Long 20/03/2015 (30,690,000) (265,239) (0.01)
(381) US Treasury Notes 10YR 20/03/2015 (48,285,797) (198,909) (0.01)
(19) US Treasury Notes 2YR 31/03/2015 (4,161,891) (734) (0.00)
(196) US Treasury Notes 5YR 31/03/2015 (23,380,656) (55,100) (0.00)
(106,518,344) (519,982) (0.02)
(676,374) (0.03)

-(0.11%)

( ) ()

PEN 13,143,600 usb 4,491,849 02/12/2014 13,241 0.00
usb 4,966,190 PEN 14,468,836 02/12/2014 6,863 0.00
usb 74,300,817 BRL 191,002,622 03/12/2014 246,756 0.01
usb 12,742,006 KRW 13,544,638,341 03/12/2014 519,392 0.02
PEN 23,125,000 usb 7,854,959 04/12/2014 69,332 0.00
usb 5,155,395 MYR 17,318,415 04/12/2014 37,928 0.00
usb 10,439,000 RUB 457,737,101 05/12/2014 1,168,920 0.05
usb 15,663,000 BRL 39,798,117 08/12/2014 254,654 0.01
usb 13,331,002 RUB 613,613,493 08/12/2014 917,103 0.04
usb 13,830,750 BRL 35,715,163 10/12/2014 11,008 0.00
usb 5,222,151 KRW 5,726,088,086 10/12/2014 61,870 0.00
usb 10,283,982 coP 21,490,951,650 11/12/2014 550,243 0.02
usb 8,899,569 MYR 29,860,905 12/12/2014 93,347 0.01
usb 5,146,000 BRL 13,178,031 15/12/2014 54,063 0.00
CNH 1,071,158,014 usb 173,652,857 17/12/2014 6,217 0.00
HUF 7,630,976,885 EUR 24,800,000 17/12/2014 109,271 0.01
PLN 126,293,497 EUR 29,939,000 17/12/2014 322,774 0.01
TRY 650,083,059 usb 287,996,948 17/12/2014 5,242,738 0.21
usb 89,798,065 AUD 101,467,823 17/12/2014 3,590,618 0.15
usb 567,909,842 EUR 444,860,770 17/12/2014 13,325,525 0.54
usb 101,075,276 HUF 24,846,627,386 17/12/2014 53,569 0.00
usb 32,064,729 ILS 110,904,045 17/12/2014 3,609,271 0.15
usb 160,788,822 JPY 17,727,006,803 17/12/2014 11,133,152 0.45
usb 168,425,050 MXN 2,261,114,490 17/12/2014 5,304,231 0.22
usb 150,013,352 PLN 502,379,296 17/12/2014 261,861 0.01
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usp 8,094,827 RON 28,490,466 17/12/2014 81,987 0.00
usp 101,083,259 SGD 128,025,465 17/12/2014 2,929,716 0.12
usp 188,974,382 ZAR 2,086,514,349 17/12/2014 164,712 0.01
usp 14,678,153 coP 31,701,542,462 18/12/2014 330,811 0.01
USD 8,153,000 MYR 27,444,955 22/12/2014 79,231 0.00
USD 11,396,834 PHP 513,028,470 13/01/2015 12,103 0.00
USD 10,602,595 BRL 27,248,669 16/01/2015 169,378 0.01
PEN 19,767,000 usD 6,731,483 23/01/2015 111 0.00
usp 9,498,114 CLP 5,624,783,000 23/01/2015 269,926 0.01
Usp 15,655,692 coP 32,419,024,239 23/01/2015 1,033,986 0.04
usp 18,971,190 RUB 803,901,704 23/01/2015 2,962,100 0.12
usp 64,198,461 IDR 792,830,817,287 30/01/2015 47,043 0.00
usp 41,156,954 THB 1,342,925,346 30/01/2015 368,575 0.02
PLN 252,381,730 usD 74,869,616 18/03/2015 78,165 0.00
TRY 48,489,828 usD 21,274,429 18/03/2015 215,793 0.01
usp 167,239,367 CNH 1,038,364,592 18/03/2015 159,106 0.01
usp 48,873,832 SGD 63,558,520 18/03/2015 159,760 0.01
USD 23,765,096 ILS 82,919,644 06/05/2015 2,462,789 0.10
USD 3,689,883 CoP 7,752,443 ,278 06/10/2015 279,623 0.01

58,768,862 2.39

( ) ()
INR 1,396,354,068 USD 22,611,847 01/12/2014 (109,968) (0.00)
KRW 13,544,638,341 USD 12,466,303 03/12/2014 (243,688) (0.01)
1DR 63,853,314,000 usD 5,250,663 04/12/2014 (21,292) (0.00)
MYR 22,574,311 usD 6,804,000 04/12/2014 (133,454) (0.01)
UsD 18,884,117 PEN 55,355,957 04/12/2014 (84,823) (0.00)
coP 20,827,749,550 usD 10,079,000 05/12/2014 (639,434) (0.03)
RUB 748,675,244 usD 16,494,000 05/12/2014 (1,331,848) (0.05)
NGN 784,647,076 usD 4,645,631 08/12/2014 (276,301) (0.01)
RUB 2,237,464,814 usD 48,468,491 08/12/2014 (3,202,761) (0.13)
BRL 13,354,410 usD 5,189,000 10/12/2014 (21,601) (0.00)
KRW 8,041,335,285 usD 7,335,322 10/12/2014 (88,570) (0.00)
CcLP 12,285,719,524 USD 20,689,104 11/12/2014 (450,986) (0.02)
MYR 24,464,581 USD 7,290,347 12/12/2014 (75,544) (0.00)
BRL 13,392,227 USD 5,176,000 15/12/2014 (1,299) (0.00)
NGN 2,105,412,931 usD 12,650,441 16/12/2014 (1,015,422) (0.04)
AUD 101,467,823 usD 89,440,855 17/12/2014 (3.233,407) (0.13)
EUR 4,264,000 HUF 1,353, 265,680 17/12/2014 (186,421) (0.01)
EUR 58,903,000 PLN 248,594,626 17/12/2014 (670,965) (0.03)
EUR 287,691,327 usD 365,342,879 17/12/2014 (6,693,367) 0.27)
HUF 22,115,942,027 usD 91,080,818 17/12/2014 (1,161,563) (0.05)
ILS 110,904,045 usD 30,724,986 17/12/2014 (2,269,529) (0.09)
JPY 17,727,006,803 usD 158,639,972 17/12/2014 (8,984,302) 0.37)
MXN 3,592,235,759 usD 267,972,986 17/12/2014 (8,822,712) (0.36)
PLN 624,680,425 USD 192,683,670 17/12/2014 (6,476,106) (0.26)
RON 65,089,767 USD 18,770,305 17/12/2014 (464,043) 0.02)
SGD 128,025,465 USD 99,068,403 17/12/2014 (914,861) (0.04)
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usb 4,433,000 BRL 11,606,392 17/12/2014 (49,126) (0.00)
usb 274,891,608 CNH 1,697,769,295 17/12/2014 (355,404) (0.01)
usb 278,161,683 TRY 626,542,774 17/12/2014 (4,459,443) (0.18)
ZAR 2,718,948,964 UsD 246,735,171 17/12/2014 (696,194) (0.03)
usD 16,386,000 BRL 43,172,276 18/12/2014 (281,442) (0.01)
MYR 54,954,858 UsD 16,416,000 22/12/2014 (249,355) (0.01)
CLP 6,209,499,246 UsD 10,413,207 09/01/2015 (212,640) (0.01)
INR 1,396,354,068 usD 22,420,586 12/01/2015 (108,229) (0.00)
usb 5,356,232 PHP 241,458,952 12/01/2015 (2,229) (0.00)
INR 1,112,129,996 usD 17,887,093 15/01/2015 (123,772) (0.01)
BRL 44,007,182 usD 17,677,087 23/01/2015 (861,094) (0.04)
CLP 1,547,344,876 UsD 2,627,071 23/01/2015 (88,451) (0.00)
CoP 58,743,931,757 UsD 28,371,144 23/01/2015 (1,876,316) (0.08)
RUB 491,475,056 UsD 10,339,422 23/01/2015 (552,070) (0.02)
RUB 381,201,900 UsD 8,278,000 26/01/2015 (694,199) (0.03)
INR 1,020,774,787 UsD 16,416,000 27/01/2015 (139,008) (0.01)
IDR 480,299,403,442 UsD 39,025,200 30/01/2015 (162,069) (0.01)
KRW 9,768,232,000 UsD 9,251,096 30/01/2015 (492,826) (0.02)
MYR 182,046,419 usb 55,240,910 30/01/2015 (1,942,817) (0.08)
PHP 66,670,847 usD 1,488,521 30/01/2015 (9,910) (0.00)
EUR 6,633,500 usD 8,286,999 18/03/2015 (11,451) (0.00)
HUF 8,033,228,040 usD 32,603,315 18/03/2015 (20,133) (0.00)
MXN 182,150,316 usD 13,193,562 18/03/2015 (122,250) (0.00)
usb 8,279,000 TRY 18,738,357 18/03/2015 (25,658) (0.00)
ZAR 1,354,250,304 UsD 121,157,919 18/03/2015 (469,519) (0.02)
(61,579,872) (2.50)
-(0.88%)
C 2 O
24,603,350 Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 11.480% TRY 13/03/2016 546,158 0.02
14,370,000 Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 11.070% TRY 10/03/2016 172,217 0.01
107,590,000 Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 12.040% TRY 26/03/2015 1,242,522 0.05
1,960,897 0.08
120,900,000 Fixed 12.000% Floating (BRL 1 month BCSWA) BRL 04/01/2016 91,405 0.00
39,980,000 Fixed 9.040% Floating (BRL 1 month BCSWA) BRL 02/01/2017 852,734 0.04
63,310,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BZDIO) Fixed 12.580% BRL 02/01/2017 229,767 0.01
61,160,000 Floating (BRL 1 month LIBOR) Fixed 12.295% BRL 02/01/2017 109,255 0.01
90,620,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BZDIO) Fixed 11.935% BRL 02/01/2018 147,224 0.01
3,356,060,000 Floating (HUF 6 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.180% HUF 13/11/2016 42,644 0.00
1,623,190,000 Floating (HUF 6 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.130% HUF  14/11/2016 14,310 0.00
1,533,720,000 Floating (HUF 6 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.140% HUF  14/11/2016 14,711 0.00
6,048,180,000 Floating (HUF 1 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.110% HUF  21/11/2016 45,606 0.00
3,074,260,000 Floating (HUF 1 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.050% HUF 25/11/2016 8,195 0.00
3,764,690,000 Floating (HUF 1 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.070% HUF  26/11/2016 16,098 0.00
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4,066,930,000 Floating (HUF 1 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.035% HUF  27/11/2016 6,124  0.00
2,198,730,000 Floating (INR 1 month LIBOR) Fixed 7.420% INN 21/11/2016 64,283  0.00
644,480,000 Floating (INR 1 month LIBOR) Fixed 7.400% INX - 24/11/2016 15,530  0.00
1,578,380,000 Floating (INR 1 month LIBOR) Fixed 7.360% INXA - 25/11/2016 19,890  0.00
13,642,800,000 Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) Fixed 2.850% KRW 03/03/2017 228,168  0.01
30,940,620,000 Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) Fixed 2.875% KRW  07/03/2017 534,434 0.02
55,944,560,000 Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) Fixed 2.245% KRW  06/10/2017 294,010 0.0l
80,605,550,000 Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) Fixed 2.238% KRW  06/10/2017 410,969  0.02
33,126,080,000 Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) Fixed 2.247% KRW  13/10/2017 177,534 0.0l
33,635,440,000 Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) Fixed 2.245% KRW 1371072017 178,148 0.01
5,766,070,000 Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) Fixed 2.250% KRW 1371072017 31,265  0.00
9,637,640,000 Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) Fixed 2.240% KRW 1471072017 49,997  0.00
8,839,610,000 Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) Fixed 2.245% KRW 1471072017 46,973 0.00
8,839,600,000 Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) Fixed 2.250% KRW 1471072017 48,088  0.00
21,698,300,000 Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) Fixed 2.252% KRW  15/10/2017 119,309  0.01
25,078,520,000 Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) Fixed 2.173% KRW  28/10/2017 92,310  0.00
8,577,550,000 Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) Fixed 2.167% KRW  28/10/2017 30,367  0.00
17,077,480,000 Floating (KRW 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.172% KRW  28/10/2017 62,641  0.00
9,530,720,000 Floating (KRW 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.175% KRW  29/10/2017 35,570 0.00
9,736,130,000 Floating (KRW 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.075% KRW  04/11/2017 11,392 0.00
14,013,880,000 Floating (KRW 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.060% KRW  04/11/2017 10,989  0.00
13,610,780,000 Floating (KRW 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.033% KRW  07/11/2017 1,480  0.00
23,667,810,000 Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) Fixed 3.620% KRW  23/08/2023 2,180,134  0.09
18,184,210,000 Floating (KRW 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.940% KRW  11/07/2024 804,880  0.03
241,760,000 Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) Fixed 9.290% MXN  22/04/2027 990,012  0.04
499,970,000 Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) Fixed 9.300% MXN  22/04/2027 2,058,839  0.08
909,350,000 Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) Fixed 8.010% MXN  29/06/2027 955,955  0.04
394,090,000 Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) Fixed 8.650% MXN  30/07/2027 962,598  0.04
115,040,000 Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) Fixed 8.520% MXN  03/09/2027 239,797  0.01
192,390,000 Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) Fixed 8.590% MXN  03/09/2027 431,229 0.02
160,780,000 Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) Fixed 7.940% MXN  22/09/2027 121,060 0.0l
714,110,000 Floating (THB 6 month LIBOR) Fixed 1.905% THB  17/11/2016 41,808  0.00
694,390,000 Floating (THB 6 month LIBOR) Fixed 1.870% THB  19/11/2016 26,297 0.00
292,120,000 Floating (THB 1 month LIBOR) Fixed 1.810% THB 24/11/2016 1,848 0.00
396,160,000 Floating (THB 1 month LIBOR) Fixed 1.820% THB  28/11/2016 1,139 0.00
126,890,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 7.640% ZAR  13/06/2019 405,501  0.02
55,570,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) Fixed 7.280% ZAR  05/09/2019 104,568  0.01
289,990,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) Fixed 7.310% ZAR  08/09/2019 575,507  0.02
13,942,592 0.57
7,380,000 Fixed 1.000% E;g:;;"g (People®s Republic of o 54/06/2019 6,345  0.00
6,345  0.00
15,909,834  0.65
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22,250,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BCSWA) Fixed 11.230% BRL 04/01/2016 (76,037) (0.00)
26,300,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BCSWA) Fixed 8.265% BRL 04/01/2016 (546,903) (0.02)
27,090,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BCSWA) Fixed 9.280% BRL 04/01/2016 (365,344) (0.01)
131,900,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BCSWA) Fixed 9.980% BRL 04/01/2016 (1,039,368) (0.04)
113,870,000 Fixed 12.640% Floating (BRL 1 month BCSWA) BRL 04/01/2016 (664,243) (0.03)
53,200,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BCSWA) Fixed 11.500% BRL 02/01/2017 (127,543) (0.01)
33,090,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BCSWA) Fixed 11.450% BRL 02/01/2018 (70,523) (0.00)
28,750,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BCSWA) Fixed 11.150% BRL 02/01/2018 (139,286) (0.01)
27,880,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BCSWA) Fixed 11.120% BRL 02/01/2018 (142,611) (0.01)
78,550,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BCSWA) Fixed 11.500% BRL 02/01/2018 (156,895)  (0.01)
33,110,000 Fixed 11.410% Floating (BRL 1 month BZDIO) BRL 04/01/2021 (20,338) (0.00)
6,842,500,000 Fixed 3.860% Floating (CLP 6 month CLICP) CLP 28/03/2016 (138,129) (0.01)
5,545,000,000 Fixed 3.850% Floating (CLP 6 month CLICP) CLP 31/03/2016 (111,187) (0.00)
7,548,640,000 Fixed 3.980% Floating (CLP 6 month CLICP) CLP 28/04/2017 (245,216) (0.01)
3,663,500,000 Fixed 3.950% Floating (CLP 6 month CLICP) CLP 12/05/2017 (115,245) (0.00)
13,147,260,000 Fixed 3.640% Floating (CLP 6 month LIBOR) CLP 28/07/2017 (249,189) (0.01)
1,684,700,000 Fixed 4.640% Floating (CLP 6 month CLICP) CLP 12/03/2019 (117,754) (0.00)
1,784,740,000 Fixed 4.650% Floating (CLP 6 month CLICP) CLP 13/03/2019 (125,914) (0.01)
606,000,000 Fixed 4.660% Floating (CLP 6 month CLICP) CLP 13/03/2019 (43,155) (0.00)
517,000,000 Fixed 4.540% Floating (CLP 6 month CLICP) CLP 26/03/2019 (32,617) (0.00)
4,450,920,000 Fixed 4.420% Floating (CLP 6 month CLICP) CLP  09/04/2019 (244,029) (0.01)
1,496,900,000 Fixed 4.430% Floating (CLP 6 month CLICP) CLP 10/04/2019 (83,055)  (0.00)
1,512,200,000 Fixed 4.350% Floating (CLP 6 month CLICP) CLP  15/04/2019 (75,599)  (0.00)
2,625,550,000 Fixed 4.000% Floating (CLP 6 month LIBOR) CLP 28/07/2019 (59,889) (0.00)
5,510,060,000 Fixed 4.030% Floating (CLP 6 month LIBOR) CLP 31/07/2019 (136,968) (0.01)
2,426,650,000 Fixed 5.360% Floating (CLP 6 month CLICP) CLP 07/06/2023 (282,490) (0.01)
24,229,380,000 Fixed 5.110% Floating (COP 3 month DTF) COP  15/04/2019 (158,614) (0.01)
10,055,690,000 Fixed 5.190% Floating (COP 3 month COOVI) COP  22/04/2019 (80,097) (0.00)
7,711,310,000 Fixed 5.320% Floating (COP 3 month LIBOR) COP  17/06/2019 (78,085) (0.00)
11,875,400,000 Fixed 5.350% Floating (COP 3 month LIBOR) COP 18/06/2019 (126,899) (0.01)
5,326,640,000 Fixed 5.920% Floating (COP 3 month MDTF) COP  16/04/2024 (6,673) (0.00)
61,166,000,000 Fixed 3.119% Floating (KRW 3 month MKSDA) KRW  10/08/2022 (1,691,885) (0.07)
28,395,500,000 Fixed 3.210% Floating (KRW 3 month MKSDA) KRW  14/09/2022 (873,465) (0.04)
32,240,419,999 Fixed 3.320% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  18/09/2022 (1,131,847) (0.05)
32,240,419,999 Fixed 3.300% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  18/09/2022 (1,105,943)  (0.04)
32,195,000,000 Fixed 3.120% Floating (KRW 3 month MKWCDC) KRW  09/10/2022 (859,535) (0.03)
7,153,000,000 Fixed 3.150% Floating (KRW 3 month MKSDA) KRW  21/11/2022 (194,556) (0.01)
23,576,890,000 Fixed 3.225% Floating (KRW 3 month MKSDA) KRW  29/11/2022 (713,523) (0.03)
29,396,590,000 Fixed 3.220% Floating (KRW 3 month MKSDA) KRW  29/11/2022 (877,902) (0.04)
32,312,210,000 Fixed 3.275% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  05/12/2022 (1,039,386) (0.04)
70,000,000,000 Fixed 3.380% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  08/01/2023 (2,496,920) (0.10)
2,000,000,000 Fixed 3.070% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  09/01/2023 (102,451) (0.00)
16,000,000,000 Fixed 3.315% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  05/02/2023 (522,724) (0.02)
14,135,280,000 Fixed 2.710% Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) KRW  06/05/2023 (382,805) (0.02)
11,203,580,000 Fixed 2.720% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  06/05/2023 (311,194) (0.01)
60,000 Fixed 3.175% Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) KRW  19/06/2023 (4) (0.00)

40,000 Fixed 3.405% Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) KRW  11/07/2023 3) (0.00)
14,168,870,000 Fixed 3.587% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  26/08/2023 (1,273,593) (0.05)
4,000,000,000 Fixed 3.460% Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) KRW  02/09/2023 (323,236) (0.01)
1,900,030,000 Fixed 3.470% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  23/12/2023 (157,637) (0.01)
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3,981,000,000 Fixed 3.465% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  23/12/2023 (328,810) (0.01)
8,364,520,000 Fixed 3.470% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  07/01/2024 (695,297)  (0.03)
4,206,700,000 Fixed 3.455% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  09/01/2024 (344,929) (0.01)
5,741,140,000 Fixed 3.465% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  13/01/2024 (475,501) (0.02)
2,579,970,000 Fixed 3.445% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  16/01/2024 (210,182) (0.01)
2,870,475,000 Fixed 3.440% Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) KRW  20/01/2024 (233,030) (0.01)
13,381,010,000 Fixed 2.965% Floating (KRW 3 month LIBOR) KRW 03/07/2024 (617,296)  (0.03)
20,362,020,000 Fixed 3.138% Floating (KRW 3 month KWCDC) KRW  23/09/2024 (370,843)  (0.01)
6,884,400,000 Fixed 3.000% Floating (KRW 3 month MKWCDC) ~ KRW 24/01/2028 (376,471)  (0.02)
216,170,000 Fixed 5.190% Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) MXN  02/10/2017 (423,947)  (0.02)
210,490,000 Fixed 5.190% Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) MXN  02/10/2017 (412,807) (0.02)
160,500,000 Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) Fixed 5.720% MXN  21/03/2028 (647,722)  (0.03)
614,450,000 Floating (THB 1 month LIBOR) Fixed 1.800% THB  25/11/2016 (1,450) (0.00)
99,600,000 Fixed 2.250% Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR) USD 17/12/2019 (1,573,441) (0.06)
212,000,000 Fixed 2.500% Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR) USD  17/12/2021 (4,441,559) (0.18)
43,200,000 Fixed 3.000% Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR) USD 17/12/2024 (1,229,969) (0.05)
32,800,000 Fixed 3.250% Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR) USD  17/12/2029 (927,918) (0.04)
114,000,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 6.520% ZAR  30/05/2018 (19,082) (0.00)
150,510,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 6.530% ZAR  31/05/2018 (20,935)  (0.00)
153,000,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 6.500% ZAR  31/05/2018 (34,267)  (0.00)
120,800,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) Fixed 6.580% ZAR  01/11/2019 (98,304)  (0.00)
377,700,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) Fixed 6.590% ZAR  02/11/2019 (295,197)  (0.01)
88,100,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) Fixed 6.480% ZAR  06/11/2019 (106,017)  (0.00)
170,230,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) Fixed 6.250% ZAR  15/01/2020 (383,910) (0.02)
101,000,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) Fixed 6.290% ZAR  16/01/2020 (212,152) (0.01)
125,000,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) Fixed 6.565% ZAR  30/01/2020 (130,928) (0.01)
135,780,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) Fixed 6.620% ZAR  30/05/2020 (143,458) (0.01)
439,600,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) Fixed 6.775% ZAR  02/11/2020 (319,179)  (0.01)

(34,993,105)  (1.42)

Floating (People®s Republic of

5,230,000 Fixed 1.000% ooy USD  20/03/2019 (65,161) (0.01)
1,060,000 Fixed 1.000% E;gﬁ;;"g (People’s Republic of e 50/03/2019 (12,428) (0.00)
1,970,000 Fixed 1.000% E;?ﬁ;;“g (People®s Republic of on 51 /6372019 (22,293) (0.00)

480,000 Fixed 1.000% E;gﬁ;;”g (Peoples Republic of o 55/03/2019 (5,233) (0.00)
3,130,000 Fixed 1.000% E;gﬁ;;"g (People’s Republic of e 50/03/2019 (41,146)  (0.00)
4,260,000 Fixed 1.000% E;?ﬁ;;“g (People’s Republic of on 51 /6372019 (52,518)  (0.01)
1,960,000 Fixed 1.000% E;gﬁ;;”g (Peoples Republic of o 55/03/2019 (22,961)  (0.00)
3,080,000 Fixed 1.000% E;gﬁ;;"g (People’s Republic of e 50/03/2019 (35,904)  (0.00)
2,100,000 Fixed 1.000% E;?ﬁ;;“g (People®s Republic of on 51 /6372019 (24,601) (0.00)
1,400,000 Fixed 1.000% E;gﬁ;;”g (Peoples Republic of o 50/03/2019 (15,540)  (0.00)

620,000 Fixed 1.000% E;gﬁ;;"g (People’s Republic of e 50/03/2019 (5.607)  (0.00)
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2014 11 30

)

2,870,000 Fixed 1.000% Er:(:?;;ng (People’s Republic of ey 50/03/2019 (28,318)  (0.00)
880,000 Fixed 1.000% g;‘:ﬁg”g (People’s Republic of on o1 /6372019 (10,304)  (0.00)
2,550,000 Fixed 1.000% E:}?ig"g (People’s Republic of ey 50/03/2019 (23,570)  (0.00)
1,300,000 Fixed 1.000% Er:(:?;;ng (People’s Republic of ey 50/03/2019 (11,485) (0.00)
5,010,000 Fixed 1.000% g;‘:ﬁg”g (People®s Republic of on o1 /6372019 (40,195)  (0.00)
4,340,000 Fixed 1.000% E:}?ig"g (People’s Republic of ey 50/03/2019 (34,819)  (0.00)
4,340,000 Fixed 1.000% Er:(:?;;ng (People’s Republic of ey 50/03/2019 (32,991) (0.00)
4,340,000 Fixed 1.000% g;‘:ﬁg”g (People®s Republic of on o1 /6372019 (29,366)  (0.00)
1,950,000 Fixed 1.000% E:}‘:ﬁ;”g (People’s Republic of ey 50/06/2019 (6,523) (0.00)
3,600,000 Fixed 1.000% Er:(:?;;ng (People’s Republic of ey 50/06/2019 (4,801)  (0.00)
13,470,000 Fixed 1.000% g;‘:ﬁg”g (People’s Republic of ,on o1 /0672019 (176,624)  (0.01)
970,000 Fixed 1.000% E:}‘:ﬁ;”g (People’s Republic of ey 50/06/2019 (10,618)  (0.00)
3,890,000 Fixed 1.000% Er:(:?;;ng (People’s Republic of ey 50/06/2019 (40,430)  (0.00)
1,420,000 Fixed 1.000% g;‘:ﬁg”g (People’s Republic of ,on o1 /0672019 (13,043)  (0.00)
2,600,000 Fixed 1.000% E:}?ig"g (People’s Republic of ey 50/06/2019 (20,076)  (0.00)
4,340,000 Fixed 1.000% Er:(:?;;ng (People’s Republic of ,oh  50/06/2019 (30,658) (0.00)
4,700,000 Fixed 1.000% g;‘:ﬁg”g (People’s Republic of ,on o1 /0672019 (39,376)  (0.00)
290,000 Fixed 1.000% E:}‘:ﬁ;”g (People’s Republic of ey 50/06/2019 (2,362) (0.00)
2,260,000 Fixed 1.000% Er:(:?;;ng (People’s Republic of ey 50/06/2019 (16,718)  (0.00)
870,000 Fixed 1.000% g;‘:ﬁg”g (People’s Republic of ,on o1 /0672019 (6,681) (0.00)
410,000 Fixed 1.000% E:}‘:ﬁ;”g (People’s Republic of ey 50/06/2019 (3,077)  (0.00)
3,080,000 Fixed 1.000% Er:(:?;;ng (People’s Republic of ey 50/06/2019 (22,598)  (0.00)
6,260,000 Fixed 1.000% g;‘:ﬁg”g (People’s Republic of ,on o1 /0672019 (44,195) (0.01)
660,000 Fixed 1.000% E:}‘:ﬁ;”g (People’s Republic of ey 50/06/2019 (4,660) (0.00)
1,560,000 Fixed 1.000% Er:(:?;;ng (People’s Republic of ey 50/06/2019 (10,674)  (0.00)
3,260,000 Fixed 1.000% g;‘:ﬁg”g (People’s Republic of ,oh o1 /0672019 (23,358)  (0.00)
1,340,000 Fixed 1.000% E:}‘:ﬁ;”g (People’s Republic of ch  50/06/2019 (9,755)  (0.00)
2,270,000 Fixed 1.000% Er']‘:‘;‘;;“g (People’s Republic of ,ch  50/06/2019 (9.695) (0.00)
(1,010,362) (0.04)
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2014 11 30

)

58,060,000 Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR)  Fixed 11.575% TRY 31/03/2015 (5,404)  (0.00)
50,901,000 Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR) g'gg;;"g (ZAR 3 month JIBAR + 7)0 23/05/2019 (275,172)  (0.01)
65,110,000 Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR) glgg;%;g (ZAR 3 month JIBAR +  ,,0 15/05/2004 (383,339)  (0.01)
31,630,000 Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR) g'gg;;"g (ZAR 3 month JIBAR + 700 13/05/2024 (175,470)  (0.01)
65,331,000 Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR) glgg;%;g (ZAR 3 month JIBAR + ;)0 13/05/2024 (360,429)  (0.01)
56,670,000 Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR) Floating (ZAR 3 month LIBOR) ZAR 15/07/2024 (134,880) (0.01)
45,640,000 Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR) g'gg;;"g (ZAR 3 month JIBAR+ ZAR  17/07/2024 (137,530)  (0.01)
58,611,000 Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR) g'jii;"g (ZAR 3 month JIBAR+ ZAR  12/08/2024 (153,040)  (0.01)
(1,625,264) (0.07)

(37,628,731)  (1.53)

2,650,313,981 ) 2,412,038,566  98.05
47,970,324  1.95

2,460,008,890 100.00
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2014 11 30
( ) )
( 2,650,313,981 ) 2,437,176,126 99.07
68,721 0.00
(676,374) (0.03)
58,768,862 2.39
(61,579,872) (2.50)
15,909,834 0.65
(37,628,731) (1.53)
47,970,324 1.95
2,460,008,890 100.00
2014 11 30
2014 11 30 0.26
(@
(0)
© 2014 11 30
(@
© 2014 11 30 0.194
® 144 1933 144

(©)
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2015
147,711,634.67 17,750,507
970,710.59 116,650
146,740,924.08 17,633,857
) 353,633
70,812
537,421
) 104.59 (12,569 )
143.92 (18,756 )
6,164
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G
2015

Theodore T. Sotir

Frank Ennis

Mark Heaney

Eugene Regan

Katherine Uniacke

2015

2015
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535,870,407

1,080,456,829

23,297,187,219
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131

23 103

PricewaterhouseCoopers, lIreland

2015 31
120.17
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2014 12 31

2014 12 31 2013 12 31
41,265 4,959 93,886 11,282
(56,822) (6.828) (50,047) (6,014)
(15,557) (1,869) 43,839 5,268
28 3 455 55
(15,529) (1,866) 44,294 5,323
(361) (43) (7,208) (866)
12 (15,890) (1,910) 37,086 4,457

2015 21
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2014 12 31
2014 12 31 2013 12 31

1,245,819 149,710 1,171,185 140,741
135,011 16,224 281,093 33,779

1,380,830 165,934 1,452,278 174,520
(382,396) (45,953) (437,954) (52,629)
998,434 119,982 1,014,324 121,891
500,000 60,085 500,000 60,085
498,434 59,897 514,324 61,806
998,434 119,982 1,014,324 121,891
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1996
90
1996
100

2014 12 31 2013 12 31
13,173 13,802
7,006 849
21,531 21,901
13,173 13,802
13,173 13,802

2014 12 31 2013 12 31

28 35

420

28 455
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2014 12 31 2013 12 31
2,503 2,155
25 18
2,528 2,173

2013

2014 12 31 2013 12 31
6,792
361 4,228
(b) 361 11,020
(3,812)

361 7,208
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()
12.5
2014 12 31 2013 12 31

(15,529) 44,294
12.5 (1,941) 5,537
1,054

1,941
201
361 4,228
361 11,020

1,941
2014 12 31 2013 12 31

2,699 46,432
3,151 3,591

6,291
122,870 231,070
135,011 281,093

2014 12 31 2013 12 31

40,445 47,730
53,720 1,311
288,231 387,769
1,144

382,396 437,954
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12 31

1,000,000 1,000,000

2013

2013

2014

2014

2014

12

12

12

12

31

31

31

31

2014 12 31

12

31

5,669

177.26

1,000,000 1,000,000

500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000
500,000 477,238 977,238
37,086 37,086
500,000 514,324 1,014,324
(15,890) (15,890)
500,000 498,434 998,434
2013 12 31
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
453 412
3,249 2,622
2,896 14,755
10,650 9,861
193.83 2013
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GOLDMAN SACHS MANAGEMENT (IRELAND) LIMITED

EROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
for the yvear ended 31 December 2014

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

MNote Uss 5§

Tumover 3 41,265 93,886

Ohperating expenses {56,822) {50,047)

OFERATING (LOSS) / FROFIT 4 (15,55T) 43839

Interest receivable and similar income 5 28 455
(LOSS) / PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE

TAXATION (13,529) 44,294

Tax on (loss) / profit on ordinary activities 8 {361) {7.208)

(LOSS) /| PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AFTER
TAXATION AND FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR i2 (15,8907 37.086

The results of the company are derived from continuing operations in both the current and prior years,

There is no difference between the (loss) / profit on ordinary activities before and after taxation and the (loss) / profit for the
financial year as stated above and their historical cost equivalents,

The company has no recognised gains and losses during the current or prior years other than those disclosed above, and
therefore, no separate statement of total recognised gains and Iosses has been presented.

The financial statement were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 April 2015,

Mol HL-_7 _—\e:év:’b&\/

Director Director

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Company nurmber: 436519
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GOLDMAN SACHS MANAGEMENT (IRELAND) LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
as at 31 December 2014

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Mote Uss Uss
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash at bank 1,245,819 1,171,185
Debtors 9 135,011 281,093
1,380,530 1,452,278
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 1] (382,396) (437,954)
NET ASSETS 998,434 1,014,324
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 11 506,000 500,000
Retained profit 12 498,434 514,324
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 12 998 434 1014324

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 Apnil 2015,

MH(»_—I el &4

Mark Heancy
Director Director

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Company mumbes: 436519
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GOLDMAN SACHS MANAGEMENT (IRELAND) LIMITED

The significant accounting policies adopted by the company are as follows:

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in sccordance with accounting standards generally accepted in
Ircland and Irish Statute comprising the Companies Acts, 1963 to 20013. Accounting standards genecrally
accepted in Ireland in preparing financial statements giving a troe and fair view are those promulgated by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland and issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

b. Historical cost convention
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.
¢. Presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in US. dollars, denoted by the symbol USS, which is the company's
presentation and functional currency.

d. Foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forelgn currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at the rates of
exchange ruling at the balance shest date, Transactions in currencics other than U5, dollars are converted at
the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates the transactions occurred. Gains and losses arising from foreign
currency transactions and on settlement of amounts receivable and payable in foreign curmency are recognised
in the profit and loss account.

e. Revenpe recogaition

Management fiees are recognised on an accruals hasis and are calculated as a percentage of a fund's average
net asset value and are recognised over the period that the related services 15 provided.

f. Taxzation

The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the period and takes into sccount current and deferred
taxation.

g Deferred tazation

Deferred tax is provided on all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet
date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay maore tax in the future or a right to pay less
tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date. Timing differences are temporary differences between
profits as computed for tax purposes and profits as stated in the financial statements which arise because
certain items of income and expenditure in the financial statements are dealt with in different vears for tax
purposes. Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
vears in which the timing differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or subsiantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

h. Dividends

Final equity dividends are recognised in the period that they are approved by the shareholders. [nterim equity
dividends are recognised in the period that they are paid. Dividends are distributed directly from equity.
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GOLDMAN SACHS MANAGEMENT (IRELAND) LIMITED

EMENTS

1 REPORTING AND DISCLOSURE EXEMPTIONS

2. FRS (Revised 1996) ‘Cash Flow Statements’

The company is a greater than 90% subsidiary of Group Inc. whose consolidated financial statements include
the company and are publicly available and is, thercfore, exempt from preparing a cash flow statement as

required by FRS1 (Revised 1996) ‘Cash Flow Statements’.

b. FR58 ‘Related Party Disclosure’

Transactions with other companies within the group are not disclosed as the company has taken advantage of
the exemption available under FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures® on the basis that the consolidated financial
statements of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc, are publicly available, All related party fransactions are
conducted with wholly owned subsidiaries of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. There were no loans made to
directors during, or subsequent to, the reporting period by the company. There were no other related party

transactions requiring disclosare.

3. TURNOVER

Tumover represents fecs carmed for the provision of fund management services to collective investment schemes,

4. (LOSS) / PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss) / profit on ordinary sctivities before taxation s stated
after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration- audit services
Foreign exchange losses

Legal fees

Audltors’ remuneration (ex VAT):

- the awdit of individual accounts

- other assurance services

- tax advisory services

- other non-audit services

Total auditors’ remuneration

5. INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

Bank interest
Interest on loans to group undertakings

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Uss Uss

13,173 13,802

7,006 B49

21,531 21,901

13,173 13,802

13,173 13,802
Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
UsS Uss

28 35

. 420

455
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GOLDMAN SACHS MANAGEMENT (IRELAND) LIMITED

N THE FINAN ATEME -3 D BER 2014

DIRECTORS® EMOLUMENTS
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Uss Uss

Aggregate emoluments:

For services as director 2,503 2,155
Pension 25 18
1,528 1,173

The directors’ emoluments are borne by group undertakings in the current and prior years,

STAFF COSTS

The company has no employees (2013: nil). All persons mvolved in the company’s operations are employed by
group undertakings.

11
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GOLDMAN SACHS MANAGEMENT (IRELAND) LIMITED

TAX ON (LOSS) / PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

{a) Analysis of charge for the year:

The charge for the taxation comprises:

Current tax:

Corporation tax at 12.5%

Adjustments in respect of previous periods
‘Total current tax (see note (b} below)

Deferred tax (see note 9):
Other timing differences

Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
USs Uss

. 5,792

361 4,218

361 11,020

. (1,812

361 7,208

(b) Factors affecting the tax (credit) / charge for the current year:

The standard rate of Irish corporation tax is 12.5% of profit before tax payable to the Irish Revenue Commissioners.
The difference between the total cwrrent tax shown above and the amount calculated by applying the Irish
conporation tax rate to the (loss) / profit on ordinary activities before tax is as follows:

(Loss) / profit on ordinary activities before tax
{Loss) / profit on ordinary activities multiplied

by standard rate in Ireland (12.5%)
Effiect of higher tax rate on chargeable gains
Losses carried forward
Exchange differences
Adjustments in respect of previous periods
Current tax (eredit) / charge for the year

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
USs USS

(15,529) 44,204

(1.941) 5,537

3 1,054

1,941 5

. 201

361 4,228

361 11,020

Defierred tax is recognised to the extent that timing differences are expected to be recoverable, A potential deferred
tax asset of §1,941 in respect of losses carried forward has not been recognised in the financial statements due to

uncertainty over its future recoverability.

12
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GOLDMAN SACHS MANAGEMENT (IRELAND) LIMITED

10.

DEBTORS
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
U5s USS
Amounts due from customers 2,699 46,432
Amounts due from group undertakings 3,151 3,591
Corporation tax receivable 5,291 -
(nher agsets 122,870 231070
135,011 281,003
All assets inchuded in the above table are considered due within one year,
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Uss Uss
Accruals and deferred income 40,445 47,730
Amounts due to group undertakings 53,720 1,311
Other liabilities 288,231 387,769
Corporation tax payahie - 1,144
382396 437,954
SHARE CAFITAL
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Mo, USS M. Uss
Anthorised
Ordinary Shares of USS1 each Lﬂﬂﬂ.mw I,MU-,DDD__M
Ordinary shares of USS1 each 504,000 £00,000 500,000 200,000
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GOLDMAN SACHS MANAGEMENT (TRELAND) LIMITED

12.

13.

14,

16.

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS® FUNDS AND MOVEMENT ON
RESERYES

Called up share Profit and loss Total
capital account

USS USS USS

At 1 January 2013 500,000 477,238 977,238
Retained profit for the period . 37,086 37,086
At 31 December 2013 500,000 514,324 1,014,324
Retained loss for the period - (15,894) (15.890)
At 31 December 2014 500,000 498,434 998,434

FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The company had no financial commitments or contingencies at the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013.

DIRECTORS' SHARE INTERESTS

The number of shares held beneficially by directors of Goldman Sachs Management (Ireland) Limited, in office at
31 December 2014, in the share capital of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. at the start and at the end of the period

was as follows:

At 31 December At 31 December

014 2013

Frank Ennis Voting Commaon Stock - -
Mark Heaney Voting Common Stock 453 412
Eugene Regan Vating Comson Stock - -
Alan Shuch Voting Common Stock 3,249 2,622
Theodore Sotir Voting Common Stock 2,596 14,755
Katherine Uniacke Voting Common Stock 10,650 4.861

Shares of Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. closed at US$193.83 on 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: USS177.26).

Theodore Sotir held 5,669 share options of Goldman Sachs Group Inc, at the beginning of the year, No options were
granted, lapsed or released during the year.

ULTIMATE AND IMMEDIATE PARENT UNDERTAKINGS

The company's ultimate and immediate parent undertaking is The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. of 200 West Street,
New York, NY 10282-2198, United States of Ameérica, a company incorporated in the United States of America.
Copies of its consolidated fnancial statements are available at the registered office of the parent company or at
www, goldmansachs, comishareholders.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The company is exposced to financial risk through its financial assets and liabilities. Due to the namre of the
company's business and the assets and lizbilities contained within the company's balance sheet, the most important
components of financial risk the directors consider relevant 1o the entity ane credit risk, operational risk and liquidity
risk. The company, as part of a global group, adheres to global risk policies and procedures.
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GOLDMAN SACHS MANAGEMENT (IRELAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2014
17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No significant events have occurred in the period subsequent to the year end date and the date of approving the
financial statements,

18. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 April 2015,
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Goldman Sachs Asset Management International

2014 12 175 5,714 1,098

EC4A 2BB 133
1869
1988
2014 12
1,780 141 5,603

2

2014 12 9,000

1996 23
2002 18
29 2007 30
2008 28
2015 4,904

G

State Street Custodial Services (lreland) Limited

2015 200,000 3,561

27 31
178.07

1991 22
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RBC Investor Services Ireland Limited

2015

1,200

15 6,384

1997 31

State Street Fund Services (lreland) Limited

2015

2013 12

2014

2015

1999

350,000

1992 23

7,000

83,616

123,100

6,232

Goldman Sachs International

1,142
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1989
1972
1972
1990
1989 1989 1989
1989
(A 1989
1893 1972
2011
2009 13 2009
65 2010 2010 43 2010 2010 44
1989 1990
2011 61 2013
21 2013 16 2013
¢!
(a
(b
1990
2005 2005
1994
1990
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Independent Auditors® Report
For the Year Ended 30 November 2014

To the Redeemable Participating Unitholders of Goldman Sachs Global Funds

We have audited the financial statements of Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder, a
Fund of Goldman Sachs Global Funds for the year ended 30 November 2014 which comprise the Statement
of Financial Position, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Net
Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units, the Schedule of Investments and
the related notes.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is Irish law and
accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council and promulgated by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Ireland (General ly Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland).

Respective responsibilities of the manager and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Manager"s Responsibilities set out on pages 3 and 4, the
Manager is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements giving a true and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance
with Irish law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board"s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the unit holders of the Fund
and for no other purpose. We do not, ingiving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands i1t may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent inwriting.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Fund®s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
Manager; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. Inaddition, we read all the
financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the
course of performing the audit. 1T we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
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Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in
Ireland of the state of the Fund"s affairs as at 30 November 2014 and of its results
for the year then ended;
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the European
Communities (Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities
Regulations, 2011 (as amended).

Opinions on other matters
We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for
the purposes of our audit.
In our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Manager.
The financial statements of the Fund are in agreement with the books of account.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

Ireland

24 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS™ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GOLDMAN SACHS MANAGEMENT (IRELAND) LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Goldman Sachs Management (Ireland) Limited for the year
ended 31 December 2014 which comprise of the Profit and Loss, the Balance Sheet, the accounting
policies and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is Irish law and accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council and
promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland (Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice in Ireland).

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors®™ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 3, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements giving a true and
fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements
in accordance with Irish law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board"s Ethical Standards for
Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company®s
members as a body in accordance with Section 193 of the Companies Act, 1990 and for no other
purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent inwriting.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the company®s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read
all the financial and non-financial information in the financial statements to identify
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. ITf we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view, in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in
Ireland, of the state of the company®s affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of its profit
for the year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Acts
1963 to 2013.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS™ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GOLDMAN SACHS MANAGEMENT (IRELAND) LIMITED -
continued

Matters on which we are required to report by the Companies Acts 1963 to 2013
We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for
the purposes of our audit.
In our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the company.
The financial statements are in agreement with the books of account.
In our opinion the information given in the Directors™ Report is consistent with the
financial statements.
The net assets of the company, as stated in the Balance Sheet, are more than half of
the amount of its called-up share capital and, in our opinion, on that basis there did
not exist at 31 December 2014 a financial situation which under Section 40(1) of the
Companies (Amendment) Act, 1983 would require the convening of an extraordinary general
meeting of the company.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the provisions in the Companies Acts 1963 to 2013 whiich
require us to report to you if, inour opinion, the disclosures of directors” remuneration and
transactions specified by law are not made.

Ronan Doyle

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit FirmDublin
21 April 2015
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